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B CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ER|E

Almost all of our major business
units were able to record healthy
growth during the year under

review.

REBEFE  ZMBRBOEBRRHEN
HREREER -

| am pleased to report the Group’s impressive results for the year
ended 31 December 2012 (FY2012 or the year under review). Such
encouraging progress underlines not only our sustained steady
growth but also provides further validation of our proven business
strategy.

Almost all of our major business units were able to record healthy
growth during the year under review. In doing so, we have
significantly reinforced our core competencies across the BUS-TV,
BUS-BODY and BUS SHELTERS platforms and cemented our
positioning as one of Hong Kong's leading integrated media groups.

Despite a slowdown in media revenues generated by BUS-TV amid
tough market conditions, we were also able to show a significant
increase in revenue from our integrated services. Content production
as well as event management for advertisers and agencies also
maintained encouraging forward momentum.

Similarly healthy growth in media revenue was recorded for both
our BUS-BODY and BUS SHELTERS platforms, and across our PRC
billboard arm.

Our uniquely integrated media platform, spanning BUS-TV, IN-BUS
and BUS-BODY, has empowered the Group's growth by enabling
us to secure more long-term contracts. We have achieved this goal
by helping make it easier for advertisers and agencies to achieve
measurable marketing goals. We have also further sharpened our
competitive edge in out-of-home media and advertising through
highly effective co-management of our bus shelter advertising.

Regarding our investment in AdSociety Daye Advertising Company
Limited in the PRC, please rest assured we are doing our utmost to
recover the remaining value of our investment. We will continue to
pursue this matter vigorously.
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Results for the year

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group had generated a
total operating revenue of HK$443.2 million. This figure represents

a rise of approximately 12% over the previous financial year
(FY2011). Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
in FY2012 was HK$74.8 million, compared with a loss of HK$48.6
million for FY2011. The FY2011 figure was mainly due to a full and
final impairment loss made on other non-current financial assets
amounting to HK$109.6 million. For the year ended 31 December
2012, profit from operations stood at approximately HK$96.5 million,
an increase of approximately 22% over the previous financial year.

Dividends

The Directors recommend a final dividend of HK7.50 cents per share
for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: HK6.11 cents per
share). This represents a pay-out ratio of 100% of the current year's
profit (2011: 100%).

Prospects

Uncertainty is still evident across worldwide markets with tough
conditions for business operations including soaring cost structures.
While anticipating stagnant growth for adspend in the coming year,
the RoadShow Group will strive hard to maintain its competitiveness.
At the same time, we intend to further diversify our business
portfolio as a part of our ongoing healthy expansion strategy.

Our newly acquired billboard business in a prime area of Causeway
Bay and the toll area of Route 3 Tai Lam Tunnel gives us tremendous
encouragement for the road ahead.

Community

We remain very enthusiastic supporters of good causes such as
helping less fortunate individuals and participating in deserving
community initiatives.

Appreciation

RoadShow would never have been able to achieve and sustain

its success without the support of its staff, clients, suppliers and
shareholders. On behalf of the Board, | thank every one of you for
your valuable contribution to our business. We remain confident of
your continued support in the future.

Our special thanks must also go to the Audit Committee, chaired by
Dr Eric Li Ka Cheung and comprising members Dr Carlye Wai-Ling
Tsui, Professor Stephen Cheung Yan Leung, Mr Yung Wing Chung
and Ms Winnie Ng for their painstaking work.

| also sincerely appreciate the valuable contributions of my fellow
Directors, in particular Managing Director Mr Alex Mo Tik Sang, to

the Group’s impressive progress.

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak

Chairman
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B MANAGING DIRECTOR’S REPORT
ESRRERE

Driven by healthy growth

across all areas, operating profit
increased by approximately 22%.

FEXBERHEREER  JHLE -

TE-CHEMBEENEERMEMY

22%

I am delighted to report that the RoadShow Group (RoadShow or
the Group) achieved strong operating results during the year ended
31 December 2012 (FY2012). Our encouraging performance was
made possible by our unique integration of media platforms plus our
provision of highly effective one-stop integrated marketing services
to both advertisers and agencies.

Credit for our steady progress must go to our professional staff who did
an outstanding job, achieving our client’s missions with value, creativity
and impact and meeting every challenge set for them.

Driven by healthy growth across all areas, operating profit increased by
approximately 22% in FY2012 to HK$96.5 million. Despite a slowing of
media revenue generated by BUS-TV due to tough market conditions,
we were able to achieve further income growth through our content
creation and event management services. The former covers production
of TV commercials and infotainment videos, while the latter spans our
organising and managing of marketing events.

Supported by our in-demand BUS-BODY business and extensive geo-
graphic coverage across Hong Kong, healthy organic growth was also
recorded by our BUS SHELTERS business. Credit for this is largely due to

RAMAREBNBEE (BABIAEE) B2
T —F+_A=+—BHULEFE(ZT—=F
MHER) SERINEEEE - ASERIRE
8 2BRARMABROGAKETS  UREMA
MESFERREMEENS R —WUXEEATES
HERS -

ARERISERE  RANFEXBETIHAIE - 1
PItERREE  EEE ABERFENEIA
HREERRFPMENR - B TENKE -

FIEXBREHERRER  JUTH
R EPRFENEERNIENN2%E
##096,500,0007T - BECTERATATR
PREA MBS ARD - HFITRAE S
NREmR MEREERBE — S HBWAIE
R AREMKGTERRFEERES MREEN
Fh o ABEERBRERAREARKREED
IZHEEAR o

FRETESEREN  NEAEwEEELE
7 ARENMETREFEBTESRROEA



the great effort made by our joint venture partner, JCDecaux, in devising
high impact packages for our clients. Following Q4 2012’s renewal of our
agreement with this operator, we are confident of still more growth in the
coming years.

As our Group Chairman has noted elsewhere in this report, we will
continue our policy of diversification in order to strengthen further the
foundations we have laid for the future. Late last year, we expanded our
portfolio with the securing of two new high-profile billboard platforms.
In addition to the giant site in Causeway Bay immediately adjacent to the
Hong Kong-side entrance of the Territory’s original Cross Harbour Tunnel,
these include billboards and panels in the toll area of Route 3 Tai Lam
Tunnel’s Yuen Long exit. Sure to further enhance integration with our
existing portfolio, such expansion provides yet another excellent example
of our approach to securing long-term growth in action.

Regarding the Group’s investment in AdSociety Daye Advertising Company
Limited in the PRC, we have tried — and will carry on trying — every means
possible to recover the maximum value of our investment.

Given the ongoing worldwide economic uncertainty, we are continuing to
do our utmost further to enhance our core competencies. In doing so, we
are not only expanding our activities in the area of content creation but
also on-line and in digital disciplines. Our primary objective is to achieve
additional synergy with conventional media and better communications
with our audience and community.

All of the above measures will further cement our status as “An integrated
Media Group For Hong Kong People”. As such, we will continue to work
hard to support community and volunteer services by channeling resources
from the commercial sector to truly needy Hongkongers. As mentioned
last year, we will also maintain our policy of working hand-in-hand with
various strategic partners in creating a harmonious and better society.

Other significant factors in the Group’s strong progress during FY2012
include the wise guidance of our Chairman and our Board of Directors
and the dedicated professionalism of our staff. Please join me in extending
sincere appreciation to each and every one of them.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Our commitment to talent and ideas is mirrored in the way we support
socially meaningful policies and practices. Our goal is to create value for
our audience as well as our staff and in our corporate culture. As we move
forward we will continue to focus our efforts on “helping the less fortu-
nate”, “protecting the environment” and “re-engineering Hong Kong'’s
competitiveness”.

Alex MO Tik Sang

Managing Director
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BUS-TV

The year ended 31 December 2012 (FY2012 or the year under review)
saw BUS-TV face challenges. Overall the Group’s sales performance was
moderate at best and was affected by a 25% reduction in the size of our
bus fleet from 4,800 to 3,600 KMB network buses. The fall followed the
ending of our exclusive contract with New World First Bus and Citybus
in July 2012.

As agile and responsive as always, we were able to adapt to such changes
quickly and effectively by implementing a number of initiatives designed
to rectify our overall sales approach. To this end, we further enhanced
and strengthened our broadcast syndication and soft implementation
capabilities.

Other major remedial steps included our expansion of our viewership
through the October 2012 launch of Music Bus and the resultant provi-
sion of top sound quality and a more comfortable environment.

In the coming year, we will continue to fully integrate BUS-TV with other
RoadShow platforms. Our ultimate aim in doing so is to better service
brands and advertisers by achieving greater synergy.
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BUS-BODY

The year under review was another satisfactory year for BUS-BODY which
continued to perform with healthy, steady growth in media revenue. Our
already strong existing client base with sustained progress in attracting new
partners, especially in the highly lucrative blue-chip sector has been ex-
panded. The positive response of advertisers and agencies to our unique
integration of BUS-TV, BUS-BODY and IN-BUS via Theme Bus proven that
BUS-BODY is a highly creative and impactful platform with which brands
can strengthen their appeal among targets.

capturing the
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B OPERATIONAL REVIEW
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IN-BUS

The overall momentum of our IN-BUS segment continued to remain stable
during the year under review. Over the course of the year, we implemented
many special measures to ensure we could achieve further growth and
continue to move forward. Specific examples included increasing our
platforms’ attractiveness by unleashing new advertising formats as well as
enhancing creativity and interactivity through more innovative leveraging
of technology.

BUS SHELTERS

This arm of our business has been operated in conjunction with JCDecaux
Cityscape Limited since 2001. On 3 July 2012, the licence of the Bus Shelters
advertising was extended for the period from 1 August 2012 to 30 June
2017 upon fulfillment of the renewal conditions as stated in the previous
Licence Agreement.
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The encouraging growth of this division during the year under review
contributed significantly to RoadShow’s revenue and profits. It also
measurably enhanced our market share and status as probably Hong Kong’s
foremost out-of-home (OOH) advertising specialist.

INTEGRATED MARKETING SERVICES

The year under review also witnessed a phenomenal surge in demand for
our market-leading Integrated Marketing Services. Key customers included
not only advertisers, event management and production specialists, but also
creative development and public relations professionals. Gratifyingly, this
upswing in demand was accompanied by a measurable rise in the number
of integrated campaigns we helped organise for our clients.

As a result, we remain perfectly placed to meet agencies and advertisers’
integrated media and marketing service needs. We are doing so through not
only our multi-media platforms and unique content production, but also our
high-quality event management services. In addition to our reputable BUS-
TV and BUS-BODY platforms, we further extended our coverage by the year
end to include Billboard, E-Portal, and Mobile Application Software. Given
all the resources they needed, our content production team also produced
many customised programmes for different clients. We further added to our
already excellent reputation in the area of event management expertise by
organising a variety of product launches, catwalk shows, talent contests,
awards presentation ceremonies and music concerts. Such a broad range of
specialisations means we continue to be more than capable when it comes
to creating a multi-media matrix for impactful advertising campaigns that
far exceed partners’ expectations.

The list of integrated campaigns we have recently co-ordinated is a lengthy
one. In addition to the presentation ceremony for the “2011 Hong Kong
Awards for Environmental Excellence”, it includes the “Environmental
Campaign Committee Rising Star Contest 2012", jointly organised with
Hong Kong Jockey Club and Yahoo! Hong Kong. The year under review
also saw us team up with the Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation
Department to organise “Pets Are Family, Too” events. The “Konica Minolta
Green Concert 2012” and “SUN” programme with the Narcotics Division
of the Security Bureau were among our many other highlights in this area
during the year under review.
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BILLBOARD

Inaugurated in December 2012, Billboard was an innovative new business
direction for us. The initiative began when were commissioned to be the
Government Property Agency’s exclusive media representative in handling
outdoor billboards at Hung Hing Road, Causeway Bay. Prominently
situated just before Hong Kong'’s continually crowded main Cross Harbour
Tunnel, our prime display here offers unprecedented exposure and impact
for advertisers who wish to reach a vast target audience.

In FY2012, we were also pleased to have entered into a licence agreement
with Route 3 (CPS) Company Limited. The resultant arrangements cover
the soliciting of various billboard advertising spaces at Route 3 (CPS)
commencing in March 2013.

The acquisition of these locations is a momentous step for RoadShow. By
expanding our operations into the billboard arena, we are not only further
solidifying our leading role in the out-of-home media market, but also
accelerating the total integration of our multi-dimensional platforms.

Apart from generating potentially huge new income streams, this coming
together will also double as an excellent supporting tool with which to
promote the Group’s integrated programs in the future.

The coming year will see us continuing our efforts to expand our Billboard
network and further enhance our market share. We also intend to
keep searching for — and securing — more top quality locations in both
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the public and private sectors. In doing so, we will mainly target prime
locations we can use as cut-in points. In the meantime, we also plan to
invest still more resources and manpower into our sustained expansion.
Along the way, we will continue to do our utmost to unearth any new
technologies and ad formats with which we can enhance our ad displays
and create maximum impact across Hong Kong.

COMMUNITY

RoadShow (or the Group) has long been applauded for its commitment to
making a meaningful contribution to Hong Kong life. In the year ended 31
December 2012, we continued to deliver on this promise by organising a
diverse range of corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities. In addition
helping the needy, specific examples of initiatives included community
service, environmental protection and promoting people’s wellbeing.

A helping hand for the needy

In February 2012, we shared our good fortune with the disadvantaged by
initiating a series of charity events including an “Elderly Spring Dinner” for
old folks living alone in Kowloon East.

In April, we hosted a “Happy Gathering with Heart with Love” with
the students of the Fresh Fish Traders’ School. The aim here was to give
underprivileged students more positive energy for their studies.

July’s “Family Day for the Chronically Ill People” at Ocean Park was
another way we did our best to give back. Some chronic disease sufferers
from Haven of Hope Community Rehabilitation Day Centre subsequently
shared an unforgettable day out with their loved ones.

The same month also saw us arrange an “All Fun Day at Lake Egret Nature
Park” for 100 visually, hearing or mobility impaired people at one of the
Territory's most scenic nature parks. While there, attendees happily joined
in various “Green” workshops and learned new ways they could make
meaningful contributions to society.

Summer neared its end with August’s “Volunteer Training & Finale Concert
at Noah's Ark” at Ma Wan Park. The aim this time around was to foster

a more harmonious community spirit in which we all care for the needy
souls all around us. Encouraging people to join voluntary services, the day
also enhanced awareness of the need to develop a sustainable voluntary
culture in Hong Kong.

Giving back to the community

Each year, we also offer deserving causes generous tranches of airtime
to publicise themselves and their fundraising activities on our IN-BUS
broadcasts. In FY2012, some 129 NGOs benefitted from this free, high-
profile exposure.

The year under review also saw us donate airtime so NGOs could promote
their organisations via our popular “One Minute NGO Introduction Spots”.
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It also marked the inauguration of a new promotion called “&ET&E" to
attract still more volunteers to support the local community.

To encourage more responsible pet ownership, we even joined forces with
the Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation Department, and non-profit-
making animal welfare organisations to co-host three animal adoption
“Pets are Family Too"” days.

Caring for the environment

In 2012, we continued to produce and broadcast environmental
protection messages via our popular "4 &/NEE" programme. Highlights
included giving famous character Andox a platform

to share his “Green” tips with RoadShow passengers.

Last April also saw Hong Kong's Environmental Protection Department
(EPD) launch a three-day exhibition and drama performance inspired by
its Community Recycling Network. To encourage people to reduce waste
at source and practice waste recycling, exhibits showed EPD’s mobile
platforms, recycling hubs, collection points and educational programs
across the Territory.

In another development, Canon appointed us to organise its “2nd Canon
Ink Cartridge Recycling Competition” for local primary and secondary
schools. The school which collects the most empty ink cartridges on

its campus will subsequently win an attractive prize. In order to ensure
student attendees “got” the “Green” message, we also helped mount
10 green workshops and 20 environmental exhibitions at participating
schools.

Encouraging healthier lifestyles

Other key developments last year included our joining forces with the
Narcotics Division of the Security Bureau and showcasing their work in

an 18-part TV series called “SUN" programme. Passengers watching the
broadcasts came away with a much better understanding of the Hong
Kong drug treatment and rehabilitation services and its crucial role in
helping drug abusers. To maximise awareness, we even arranged a special
launch ceremony to mark the start of the collaboration.
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B FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBREE

For The Year Ended 31 December
BZE+=-A=+—HLEE

Unit

as /3 2012 2011
By
Total operating revenue HK$ million
—en ~ e e 443.2 397.3
PN BEBET
Profit/(loss) before taxation HK$ million
v oas . e e — 96.5 30.9
BHAIRF], (E) BT T S
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity shareholders HK$ million 74.8 (48.6)
RERELEF,(EiE) BEBET ) '
Profit/(loss) before interest, tax, depreciation and .
A HK$ million
amortisation expenses e B 116.9 (11.6)
HBFS BB - FERSBEEANAF (FHE) TTERT
Basic earnings/(loss) per share HK cents
o > . 7.50 4.88
SREART], (F58) Sl (4.88)
* Arising from the Group’s operations HK cents 7.50 611
EXERNEEREER Rl ) '
® Arising from impairment loss on other HK cents
non-current financial assets SN —_ (10.99)
EfEEMIERBEREERERE !
Proposed final dividend per share HK cents 2.50 611
BEKETRARERE B ’ '
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders HK$ million 646.2 6305
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The Group manages its business by the following geographical areas: REEZEAT R ERHER

Hong Kong . Provision of media sales and management services && CRHEREE REERE
Mainland China : Provision of media advertising agency services and FEI AR @ EHEREEREREEESH

RoadShow Holdings Limited E Annual Report 2012

design and production of advertisements HREE
Hong Kong Mainland China Total
BB Hp B K st
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
BT B¥Tr B¥%Tr BBTr B%Tr BETT
Revenue from external R AN R
customers 416,971 370,556 4,183 935 421,154 371,491
Other revenue and other  EAYA & E A
net income/(loss) Wzt /(18 ) %58 8,755 9,724 14 (138) 8,769 9,586
Reportable segment XL N
revenue 425,726 380,280 4,197 797 429,923 381,077
Reportable segment E2H/HHRR
profit/(loss) (E548) 97,690 82,308 91 (113,531) 97,781 (31,223)
Unallocated other revenue K% Fg &MU A K
and other net income Hz %58 13,250 16,251
Unallocated head office ROBBAMRER R
and corporate expenses PELTH (14,541)  (15,909)
Profit/(loss) before BERI&ER] ()
taxation 96,490 (30,881)
| B
ncome tax s Bt (16,991)  (12,863)
Profit/(loss) for the FEERF(EE)
year 79,499 (43,744)
Attributable to: FE(ELATE -
Equity shareholders of the ZRZARIARE
Company 74,817 (48,637)
Non- lling i =S
on-controlling interests  JEIEAS#E 2 2682 655
Profit/(loss) for the REERF,(BER)
year 79,499 (43,744)




Results

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group reported total
operating revenue of HK$443.2 million, representing an increase
of approximately 12% over the previous year. Profit attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company was HK$74.8 million in 2012,
compared with a loss of HK$48.6 million in 2011 which included
an impairment loss on other non-current financial assets amounting
to HK$109.6 million. For the year ended 31 December 2012, profit
from operations was approximately HK$96.5 million, representing an
increase of approximately 22%. The Group continues to maintain a
strong financial position with bank deposits and cash of HK$409.8
million as at 31 December 2012 (2011: HK$428.1 million).

Operating Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group reported total
operating revenue of HK$443.2 million, of which HK$421.2 million
was from media sales services and HK$22.0 million was from other
revenue and other net income. Revenue from media sales services
generated from the Hong Kong and the Mainland China operations
accounted for approximately 99% and 1% of the Group’s total
turnover respectively. Revenue generated from the media sales
services of the Hong Kong operations was HK$417.0 million in
2012 compared with HK$370.6 million in 2011, representing a 13%
increase mainly contributed by the BUS-BODY advertising business,
while that generated from our Mainland China operations was
HK$4.2 million in 2012 compared with HK$0.9 million in 2011.

Operating Expenses

The Group’s operating expenses increased by HK$28.6 million, from
HK$318.1million in 2011 to HK$346.7 million in 2012 as a result of
the growth of our business.

Dividends

The Directors recommend a final dividend of HK7.50 cents per share
(2011: HK6.11 cents per share) for the year ended 31 December
2012. This represents a pay-out ratio of 100% of the current year’s
operating profit.

Cash Flow

In 2012, the cash generated from the operations of the Group

was HK$51.6 million (2011: HK$82.6 million). Payment for capital
expenditure in 2012 amounted to HK$8.8 million (2011: HK$27.1
million). The consolidated cash flow statement of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2012 is set out on pages 71 to 72 of this
Annual Report.

ES

HE-_Z——#+_A=+—HILFE K&
B SR 15 8 & W A 4R ZE S 15 443,200,000 7T © 8
EFEMA12% c —T— —FHARARIRRE
15 BT AABHE 74,800,000 M—_ZE——4F
B A) IR B FE A 518 Bl A 1 48,600,000
T HReEEMERDSREERES
18/8# 109,600,000 T - HE-ZT——4F
TZAZT—BLEFE  CERFOABE
96,500,000 7T * #EHN4122% ° NEBLEERE
BROMBSRN  RZE——F+-A=+—
B BT FERRIRE 5B 409,800,000 7T( =
T——f : 7% 428,100,000 JT) °

REWA

BE-Z——H+-A=+—HIEE &A%
B SR 5 2 U A 258815 443,200,000 T © &
FREHE 421,200,000 7T 5K B B SHE ARTS -
7 # 22,000,000 7T IR B H b A K E b
WzE 35 - B R EAEEGTELNEL
HERBBADBIMEREEBEEELN9% &
1%« AEBR B ——EMEBEEHNERE
FTE AR A ABE 417,000,000 7T © $th =
T ——FH)B % 370,600,000 TS 13% Hy1E
& DEEHRRETESINDEE LB -
RZZ——F  AEERFEREEEHEE
TEFTE £ A BB 4,200,000 * M_Z
——F 8 A%% 900,000 7T °

AEBEMNKCEBRR_T——FHBE%
318,100,000 JTiE N5 28,600,000 L —F
— —F A% 346,700,000 70 © TIH R EEH
BRATH °

B’E
EEEBEREE_T——F+_A=1+—AH1
FERERAREFHRBLE7.500L(ZF——
FBREY6A1 ) - REXRAEAFERT
#1100% °

RERE

RZZ—ZF AEERELLEEDNRE BB
# 51,600,000 7T (= ——4F : A& 82,600,000
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

At 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group did not have any

bank borrowings. The gearing ratio, representing the ratio of bank
borrowings to the total share capital and reserves of the Group was
0% at 31 December 2012 and 2011.

At 31 December 2012, the Group did not have any stand-by banking
facilities (2011: HK$50.0 million).

At 31 December 2012, the Group had net current assets of HK$519.5
million (2011: HK$491.5 million) and total assets of HK$766.5 million
(2011: HK$766.1million)

Charge on Assets

At 31 December 2012, bank deposits of HK$60.2 million (2011:
HK$41.2 million) were pledged to secure certain bank guarantees
issued by the subsidiaries of the Company to fellow subsidiaries
regarding their due performance and payment under certain licence
agreements between the subsidiaries of the Company and the fellow
subsidiaries.

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and Related
Hedges

The Group’s monetary assets and transactions are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars and Renminbi. During
the year, there was no material fluctuation in the exchange rates

of Hong Kong dollars and US dollars and of Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi. The Group did not engage in any derivatives activities and
did not commit to any financial instruments to hedge its balance
sheet exposure in 2012. At 31 December 2012 and 2011, the
unutilised amount of proceeds from the Global Offering and the
exercise of an over-allotment option by the underwriters on 18 July
2001 were placed into bank deposits

Capital Expenditures and Capital Commitments

Capital expenditures incurred by the Group during 2012 amounted
to HK$6.7 million (2011: HK$66.5 million). The breakdown of capital
expenditures incurred is shown in note 13 to the financial statements
on page 99 of this Annual Report.

Capital commitments outstanding and not provided for in the
financial statements of the Group at 31 December 2012 amounted
to HK$111.0 million (2011: HK$111.0 million), which is mainly for
the upgrade of the existing MMOB system for the BUS-TV advertising
business. The commitments are to be financed by bank borrowings
and/or internal resources of the Group.

RBEERUBER

RNZE——FRk=_F——F+=-A=+—8"
AEBTH/EIMRITER - RZT—ZFR=
T——F+ZA=1+—H FEEMNELAE
E(RIBITEREASERARFEHESEEN
E&) R 0% °

R-EBE——F+-A=+—0 KEEIEX
FARITME(ZZT——F : B 50,000,000
JT) e

RZTE—ZF+ZA=+—0  £EEHN
BV EEFERB 519,500,000 (=%
——%F : B 491,500,0007T) * MEERE
ABAE 766,500,000 L(ZF——F : B
766,100,000 JT) °

BEEEF

RZE——F+=ZA=+—H &%
60,200,000 7L( =T ——4F : ¥ 41,200,000
TO)BERAT R EAR - ERRRRINE AR5
HEZZRORINEERAZAMB AR NG
THRITERE TOETRNRAZMNBAREL S
THRITERER -

B =5 B = B 2 A A 3 b

AEENERBEERZHGTIENEE Xk
ARBREN - FR - BERAETREE LA
REMEXYESARE R-_T——F K
SETEETEATELARY - TEETE
e TAHTEEERBERRAR N_FF
—FEATN\BBBEREERBHBITER
BREBRBREHRBBNAERAR T ——F
R-ZB——F+-A=+—REFERITENR

BEXAMXRERESE

RERR -_T-——FNEENERRAIABE
6,700,000 7. (==& ——4 : %% 66,500,000
T0) c FTEAEARRENBABERNBRNAFRE
99 B B mERMIEE13 -

RZZE——F+-_A=+—H " HKETE
W AR B B 1 SRR VB A0 & AR
A% 111,000,000 T ( ZE——F : B
111,000,000 7T) ' FERANRBLERESE
BRARERDZERBRES - BEREEHIAR
TERR/ A EEBNNIERE -



Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities at 31
December 2012 and 2011.

Accounting Standards and Policies

The financial statements set out on pages 66 to 129 have been
prepared in accordance with the applicable disclosure requirements of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the "Listing Rules”), all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards

and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

At 31 December 2012, the Group had 143 full-time employees in
Hong Kong and 2 full-time employees in Mainland China.

The Group offers a comprehensive and competitive remuneration

and benefits package to all its employees. In addition, it offers a
performance bonus scheme to its senior staff based on achievement
of business objectives and a sales commission scheme to its sales team
based on achievement of advertising revenue targets. The Group has
adopted a provident fund scheme for its employees in Hong Kong as
required under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and
participated in employee pension schemes organised and governed by
the relevant local governments for its employees in Mainland China.

HREE
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Connected Transactions HERS

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group had the following HEZ——F+-_A=+—HIFE &X&
continuing connected transactions, details of which are set out below. BB TMBEBELS  BEFBEHINNOT -

(i) The Group entered into the transactions with the connected () REBR ST HFERBEATET M
parties in 2009 as set out below. The transactions constitute X5 BELFTHRANE14AE  ZEXS
continuing connected transactions which are subject to reporting, BREEEETS  LESTHE A
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval KBS IREHAENET - TS HHEE
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The details BRAARR-EEAENE++ 8
of the transactions listed below were disclosed in the circular of HBANRE - ZESSREBEE LB
the Company dated 17 September 2009. The transactions and OR-—EThE+AABRBREEBIAS
the respective annual caps were approved at the special general B R o

meeting by the independent shareholders on 9 October 2009.

Name of Nature of transactions HK$'000 Cap amount

connected parties TEME Sy 5 approved by the

RAEALER independent

shareholders

BEIRR

HERN S LR

HK$°000

BT T

1) The Kowloon Motor Bus Licence fee payable by RoadShow Media 12,000 52,000
Company (1933) Limited Limited (“RoadShow Media”) (Note 2) to
("KMB") (Note 1) KMB in relation to the grant of a licence by
NEEL(—h== KMB for soliciting advertising business in
BRAR(AE]) () respect of the interior panels of the bus body

of the KMB buses

RoadShow Media Limited ([RoadShow
Medial) (BizE2) N ERH BB AEBE LSEF
ANBESMNETESEBENETERNE A

BAFET &
2) KMB Licence fee payable by Bus Power Limited 60,000 93,000
he (Note 3) to KMB in relation to the grant of

a licence by KMB for the exclusive right to
market, display and maintain advertisements
at the exterior panels of the bodies of the
KMB buses

Bus Power Limited (F5E3) 3t N ER B M@ H#
HOBTIREFSEERESIINBESMANBR
BRI LB NS E

Notes: BifsE -

1. KMB is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Transport International 1. WNERHBREZERERAR(IHEDNHEEZE
Holdings Limited (“TIH"). MEAE -

2. RoadShow Media is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. 2. RoadShow Media AR RIKEELEWRBE LA

3. Bus Power Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. 3. Bus Power Limited A AR EEZEZENB AR °



(i) The Group entered into the transactions with the connected

parties in 2008 as set out below. The transactions constitute
continuing connected transactions which are subject to reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The details
of the transactions listed below were disclosed in the circular of
the Company dated 28 November 2008 and were approved at the
special general meeting by the independent shareholders on 15
December 2008.

The details of the annual caps in respect of the royalty fees payable
and the annual caps in respect of the Shortfall receivable and

the management fees payable under the following transactions,
for the year ended 31 December 2011 and for the 7 months
ended 31 July 2012 were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 29 March 2011 and the circular of the Company
dated 20 April 2011. Based on the applicable percentage ratios,
the annual caps in respect of the royalty fees payable are subject
to the reporting and announcement requirements but exempt
from the independent shareholders’ approval requirements of
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The annual caps in respect of the
Shortfall receivable and the management fees payable are subject
to the reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
KMB Resources Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of TIH and the
intermediate controlling shareholder holding approximately 73.01%
of the issued share capital of the Company, has approved in
writing the annual caps for the Shortfall and the management fees
for the year ended 31 December 2011 and the 7 months ended 31
July 2012.

The following transactions have been extended for the period

from 1 August 2012 to 30 June 2017. The details of the extended
transactions and the respective proposed annual caps were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 3 July 2012
and the circular of the Company dated 30 July 2012. The annual
caps in respect of the royalty fees payable, Shortfall receivable, the
management fees payable and the sales rebate payable are subject
to the reporting, announcement and independent Shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The transactions and the respective proposed annual caps were
approved at the special general meeting by the independent
shareholders on 15 August 2012.

(i) FEER T NFEHEBAET T

X5 BELTRUEVIARE  ZERH
BRSEMER S WRETHRE 2
FRBIUBRRMENRE - TR ZHNFE
ERARBAR-_ZZENF+—-A-+\RH
TIBNBRARE YR _EENF+
ATHEAMKRRSNAS LB BRRY
fE o

BE-_Z——F+-A=+—HLFER
HE-_ZT——FtA=+—HL+tM@EA "
BAITNOBENENFELREBEUTR
SEBTEERAEINERENFE LR
ERARBIN-_E——FZA=-F+ BT
BRAGRN T ——FMA=+HT%
WBHNEE BREERESLE AX
NHBHNENFEE LRABTHREAM
BE  MERAET EMANE14AED
BURRAERTE - EEEKRTZERE
TNEBRENFE FRAMT EHRAE
T4AEH AR - Db B RE AR
F ° KMB Resources Limited A& &
2ENBARIRIBEBEARAQRBBITRAN
73.01% RN EREER  EEELERE
—E -+ A=t-HILEFELRER
ZE—CZHFtA=t-HIEEEAMER
TREREINERENFELR -

UTRSGBEEZE—ZZFNA—HERE
TELFRAZTR-ERXRZHRIEH
EEFELRNFBECNARFR-F
——FEAZATENRE  AREARF
RZZE-—ZF+tA=THHENBRHAK
%o BB ETRAUE14AT - BEAIN
MENE  RETRE ENEBRERE
NEELHNFE LRAETRR - 2
FBUBRRIENRE - ZERXHRIAH
BEFELRN-_Z——F N \ATHER
BERF IR S FB IR AL
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ii) Name of
connected parties

BEALER

3) KMB
nE

Nature of transactions HK$’000 Cap amount
REME BET T approved by the
independent
shareholders

RBYIRER
HENSEE LR
HK$°000
BT

Royalty fee payable by Bus Focus Limited 18,634 19,000
("Bus Focus”) (Note 4) to KMB in connection

with the provision of media sales services for

transit vehicle shelters owned by KMB

Bus Focus Limited ([Bus Focus ) (K3t 4) 5t A&
NEBRENEEEMEE = REHEBHERS
BAB LR BEFE

4) JCDecaux Cityscape Limited
("JCDecaux Cityscape”)
(Note 5)

ERREBRAR
(TMEsREE ) (MsES5)

Management fee payable by Bus Focus to 20,991 21,400
JCDecaux Cityscape in connection with the

provision of media sales services for transit

vehicle shelters owned by KMB

Bus Focus st A L EHAEN T EEMIRE=ZH
BERHERBARESREXNOERE

5) JCDecaux Cityscape
EERE

Sales rebate payable by Bus Focus to = 3,100
JCDecaux Cityscape in connection with the

provision of media sales services for transit

vehicle shelters owned by KMB

Bus Focus st ANBHAENREEMIZE =ZMH
HEMEREANESELSTNEERN

6) JCDecaux Cityscape

Shortfall of guarantee rental receivable by = 24,000

EaREY Bus Focus in connection with the provision of
media sales services for transit vehicle shelters
owned by KMB
Bus Focus BtNE#A N FESHKEZIRMHE
BIHERBHEKRIEEHN T B HE
Notes: B st
4. Bus Focus is an indirect 60%-owned subsidiary of the Company and a direct 4. Bus FOCUSE$Qﬂfﬂﬁ?§?ﬁﬁ60%%§ﬂ’ﬂmg’éﬂ ,
40%-owned associate of Immense Prestige Limited (“IPL"). IPL is a wholly-owned I H &lmmense Prestige Limited ([IPL))E# A
subsidiary of JCDecaux Cityscape Hong Kong Limited (“JCDecaux CHK"). 40% 1E z= M Bt & A 8] © IPL A JCDecaux Cityscape
5. JCDecaux Cityscape is a wholly-owned subsidiary of JCDecaux CHK. Hong Kong Limited ([ JCDecaux CHK )&% H[ff/&

SIS
5. EERE A JCDecaux CHKHZEMBAF -



(iii) The Group entered into the transaction with the connected party
in 2007 as set out below. The transaction constitutes a continuing
connected transaction which is subject to reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The details of the transaction
listed below were disclosed in the circular of the Company dated
21 November 2007 and were approved at the special general
meeting by the independent shareholders on 10 December 2007.
The details of the annual caps in respect of the licence fee and
service charges payable by RoadShow Media under the following
transaction for the three years ended 31 December 2010, 2011
and 2012 were disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 17
September 2009 and were approved at the special general meeting
by the independent shareholders on 9 October 2009.

The following transaction has been extended for the period from
1 August 2012 to 30 June 2017. The details of the extended
transaction and the proposed annual caps were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 16 March 2012 and the
circular of the Company dated 18 April 2012. The transaction
and the proposed annual caps in respect of the licence fee and
service charges payable by RoadShow Media under the following
transaction for the five years ending 31 December 2013, 2014,
2015, 2016 and 2017 were approved by the independent
shareholders on 14 May 2012.

Nature of transaction

REMHE

iii) Name of
connected party

BEEALTER

(i) AEER_ZETLFHPEATET TR
RS - BREBELITRUWE4AZE  ZRH
BRSERERS  WHABTHK - 216
B REERNIRTE - TR FHHFIE
ERARAR-_ZZLF+—HA=-+—H
TR BRAREE YR _TTLF T
ATHERRREFRAE BB RE
# ° RoadShow Mediaft TP HZE=F
— 25 2 —FR-FT-—-F+-A
=T -BLEFEAXNNETERREE
WEELROFBERAQTARZZEEN
FAATEARENBRHAKE - TR
ZEENFTANBRBRREERIRS RS
SRR BEE o

NTRGEE_E——F\A—BERE
—E—+FRA=Z+H - TEERXRHRIEH
BEFELRONFEEREARAR-E

—ZF=A+ABHEHRE - UEREAR
AIRZE—ZFWMA+N\BHEHEEA
WE - %X 5 K% RoadShow Media it T
NEE-T—=F - ZF—NF - =%

—hF ZE-AFRZT—tF+ZA
=+ —ALAEFENRSBEI TR
BRRBENREZFELRER =2 —=
FRHATEAEE T REIE

HK$000
BET T

Cap amount
approved by the
independent
shareholders

BB IR
HENSE LR
HK$'000
BET T

25,185 55,000

7) KMB Licence fee, service charges and rental
E expenses payable by RoadShow Media to
KMB in connection with the granting of
an exclusive licence to conduct BUS-TV
Advertising on KMB's transit vehicles fitted

with the MMOB broadcasting system

RoadShow Media FLERBRIGTTELEGT
PEZERERRFNNAERESH FETEL
BERESEBERANEINNEHE  REE
¥k

# H fE45710¢
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(iv) The Group entered into the transactions with the connected party (AEBER -_ZE-——FR_T-_FHHE

in 2011 and 2012 as set out below. The transactions constitute ATHET TR S - RIE EHRAE 14A
continuing connected transactions which are subject to reporting E ZERGBNBERERS  WAEE
and announcement requirements, but are exempt from the STERBEAGIRTE - A ER B STIET
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter REMHERNRTE - TR S RABES
14A of the Listing Rules. The details of the transactions listed ErRHSEEDRARTIN -E——&
below and the respective proposed annual caps were disclosed in NA+—BTRNAHBRNIEE -

the announcement of the Company dated 11 September 2012.

iv) Name of Nature of transactions HK$’000 Cap amount
connected party RBtE BT SHELR
BEALTERE HK$'000

BT T

8) KMB Rental and other charges and expenses payable 1,166 1,166

E by Bus Power Limited to KMB in connection

with the leasing of the fifth floor, 9 Po Lun
Street, Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Bus Power Limited stEEB N EZ R AT R
O AARNEX NS REMER LAY

9) KMB Rental and other charges and expenses 1,611 1,611
hBe payable by RoadShow Media to KMB in
connection with the leasing of the sixth floor,
9 Po Lun Street, Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon, Hong
Kong

RoadShow Media Bt (& & LEER X AE M
9SRNBARNEXMHES R EME R R}

Independent Non-Executive Directors have reviewed and confirmed that B> IEgrrESEEZP LM G) ~ Gi) ~ (i) &
the continuing connected transactions as set out in (i), (ii), (iii) and (iv) (V) BREEETHEBERERS » UKD
above, which were entered into by the Group, are: HEXHE

e in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; . RAEEASEE —REEBIRGOTY

o R—MBAEBRIIETERRERETEE
ZESHBYE=FRHRERBRM
JE)BMERETS - &

o MAEMMRENRZ BRFBEBATAEK
HARRARRNBENS -

e on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable than
terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent third parties;
and

e in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.



The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions set
out above in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Use of Proceeds

Since the listing of RoadShow on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, the Group has utilised approximately HK$433.8 million for
the development of, and the purchase of equipment for use in, the
BUS-TV and other business and for the acquisition of complementary
businesses in Mainland China. The balance of the proceeds, which has
not been utilised, has been deposited with licensed banks in Hong
Kong.

Corporate Governance

Over the years, the Group has placed strong emphasis on maintaining
high standards of corporate governance and believes good corporate
governance provides a solid and sound framework to assist the
Directors in fulfilling their duties and responsibilities to the Group. The
Group's standards of corporate governance ensure that the Group's
corporate decision-making process, internal controls, disclosure of
information and communication with shareholders is conducted in
accordance with sound management practices and in full compliance
with the regulatory standards. The Corporate Governance Report of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 is set out on pages
37 to 56 of this Annual Report.
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Dr John CHAN Cho Chak
PRREEBETAFHL
Chairman £ /&

Aged 69, Dr Chan has been a Non-executive Director and the Chairman of
the Company since 15 January 2001. He is an Independent Non-executive
Director and Deputy Chairman of Transport International Holdings Limited
(“TIH"). He previously served as Managing Director of TIH and as Managing
Director and later Senior Executive Director of The Kowloon Motor Bus
Company (1933) Limited (“KMB") and Long Win Bus Company Limited. He
is also an Independent Non-Executive Director of Hang Seng Bank Limited,
Guangdong Investment Limited and Swire Properties Limited. Dr Chan held
many positions in the Hong Kong Civil Service from 1964 to 1978 and
from 1980 to 1993, the key ones of which included Private Secretary to
the Governor, Deputy Secretary (General Duties), Director of Information
Services, Deputy Chief Secretary, Secretary for Trade and Industry and
Secretary for Education and Manpower. Dr Chan also served as Executive
Director and General Manager of Sun Hung Kai Finance Company Limited
from 1978 to 1980. He was Chairman of the Hong Kong Jockey Club
from 2006 to 2010. Dr Chan is Chairman of the Court of the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology, a Director of the Community Chest
and a member of the Exchange Fund Advisory Committee.

YUNG Wing Chung
BXKE

Deputy Chairman BlE &

Aged 66. Mr Yung has been a Director of the Company since 20 November
2008. He is a Corporate Advisor of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited. He
also serves as a Non-Executive Director of SmarTone Telecommunications
Holdings Limited, a Non-Executive Director and an Alternate Director to
Mr Raymond Kwok Ping Luen of Wing Tai Properties Limited, Director of
YATA Limited, Hong Kong Business Aviation Centre Limited, River Trade
Terminal Co. Ltd., Hung Kai Finance Company Limited and Airport Freight
Forwarding Centre Company Limited, and as an Alternate Director to Mr
Raymond Kwok Ping Luen of Transport International Holdings Limited.
Prior to his joining Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited in 1995, Mr Yung had
many years of working experience with a U.S. Bank in various managerial
positions in Hong Kong and the United States.

B PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

GBS, JP, DBA (Hon), DSocSc (Hon), BA, DipMS, CCMI, FCILT, FHKIoD
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Winnie NG
mEE

Aged 49. Ms Ng is the Founder of the Company and has been Director
since its inception. She is also a Director of Transport International Holdings
Limited, The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited, and Long Win Bus
Company Limited. Ms Ng has received numerous awards and recognition.
In 2010, she was named a Woman of Excellence and was also selected as
one of 60 Meritorious Chinese Entrepreneurs with Achievement and National
Contribution. In previous years, she won the Yazhou Zhoukan Young
Chinese Entrepreneur Award, was named one of China’s 100 Outstanding
Women Entrepreneurs, was Mason Fellow of Harvard University, and was
the Caring Heart Award recipient. She founded and spearheaded listing of
this multi-media company, which business model has been adopted by many

companies in HK, China and over the world.

Active in public service, she serves on a number of public and community
boards. She is Member of Hospital Authority, Member of HK Tourism Board,
Court Member of the Polytechnic University, Director of Vocational Training
Council, Council Member of Better HK Foundation, Vice Chairperson and
Director of Friends of Bauhinia, PR Committee Member of Community Chest.
She holds an MBA from University of Chicago and an MPA from Harvard

University. She is a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Marketing.

Alex MO Tik Sang
FE4L

Managing Director % %48 4538
FHKIoD

Aged 47. Mr Mo has been a Director of the Company since 15 April
2008. With more than twenty years of extensive experience in advertising,
marketing and the media field, Mr Mo possesses integrated experience in
multiple disciplines of the communications industry having held management
responsibilities in the past seventeen years. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Mo
held a senior position in a leading media group for Greater China.

Founder and Deputy Chairman &l A &2l /&
BA, MBA (Chicago), MPA (Harvard), FCIM, CMILT, MHKIoD
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2 | Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI
HERELAFHL

Aged 65. Dr Tsui has been a Director of the Company since 1 April 2001.
A graduate of the University of Hong Kong, Dr Tsui obtained her Doctorate
degree in Professional Studies from Middlesex University, UK. She is the
Chief Executive Officer of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. She is also
Fellow of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, The Hong Kong Institute
of Directors, Hong Kong Management Association and The British Computer
Society, Honorary Fellow of the Hong Kong Association for Computer
Education and Chartered Information Technology Professional. Dr Tsui is
holder of Professional Diploma on Corporate Governance and Directorship. A
Justice of the Peace, Dr Tsui is a Member of the Communications Authority
and the Board of Review (Inland Revenue Ordinance) and Deputy Chairman
of Hong Kong Internet Registration Corporation Limited. She was formerly a
Wan Chai District Councillor, a Councillor of Urban Council and Provisional
Urban Council and a member of Broadcasting Authority. She is Founding
Chairman of Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra. She is an Independent Non-
Executive Director of Polytec Asset Holdings Limited (208) and was an
Independent Non-Executive Director of FU JI Food and Catering Services
Holdings Limited (1175). She was selected as one of the Ten Outstanding
Young Persons in Hong Kong 1981 and awarded IT Achiever of the Year
1992, Member of the Most Excellent Order of the British Empire in 1997,
Bronze Bauhinia Star 2003 and the Ken Goulding Award for the most
outstanding professional doctorate of Middlesex University 2007.

Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung
FREFBLAFEHL

Aged 59. Dr Li has been a Director of the Company since 16 September
2004. He is the Senior Partner of Li, Tang, Chen & Co., Certified Public
Accountants (Practising) and an Independent Non-executive Director
of Transport International Holdings Limited, The Kowloon Motor Bus
Company (1933) Limited, Long Win Bus Company Limited, Sun Hung
Kai Properties Limited, SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited,
Wong's International (Holdings) Limited, Hang Seng Bank Limited, China
Resources Enterprise, Limited and Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.. Dr Li
was an Independent Non-executive Director of Meadville Holdings Limited
(@ company listed on the Stock Exchange until its withdrawal status on
19 April 2010). Dr Li is a member of the 12th National Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a member of the
Legislative Council of Hong Kong from 1991 to 2004 and Chairman of its
Public Accounts Committee from 1995 to 2004. He is also a past president
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Independent Non-Executive Director B 31T E
BBS, MBE, JP, DProf, BA(Econ), FHKIoD, FHKMA, FBCS, CITP, FHKIE, HonFAGE, PDIpCD
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RICRERAFHL

BBS, JP, FHKIoD

Aged 53. Professor Cheung has been a Director of the Company since 19
January 2009. He is the Dean of the School of Business and a Professor
(Chair) of Finance, at the Hong Kong Baptist University. He also holds
Advisory and Adjunct Professorships at Fudan University and Shanghai Jiao
Tong University respectively. He obtained a BSc from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong, PhD in Statistics from Universite de Paris VI, and PhD in
Finance from the University of Strathclyde.

He has served as a project coordinator for the Consumer Council in its
examination of the Hong Kong Banking sector. He was Chairman of Core
Group on Corporate Governance, Pacific Economic Cooperation Council
and was responsible for drafting the PECC's guidelines on good corporate
governance practice for Asia-Pacific economies. He has provided consultancy
services to the Asian Development Bank, United Nations ESCAP, Securities
and Futures Commission of Hong Kong, Financial Services Bureau, Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong and SG Securities (HK) Ltd.

Professor Cheung is Chairman of the Hong Kong Committee for Pacific
Economic Cooperation (HKCPEC), Nursing and Midwifery Sub-Group,
Steering Committee on Strategic Review on Healthcare Manpower Planning
and Professional Development, Consultation Panel of the West Kowloon
Cultural District Authority. He is also Chairman of the Supervisory Committee
of the Asian Bond Fund (ABF) Hong Kong Bond Index Fund of the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority. He serves on the Operations Review Committee,
and Witness Protection Review Board of Independent Commission Against
Corruption (ICAC), Minimum Wage Commission, Social Enterprise Advisory
Committee, Products Advisory Committee of Securities and Futures
Commission (SFC), Steering Committee on Strategic Review on Healthcare
Manpower Planning and Professional Development, and Independent Police
Complaints Council (IPCC). He was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star in
2009, and was appointed as Justice of the Peace in 2007 by the HKSAR

Government.

Professor Cheung was Chairman of Advisory Committee on Enhancing
Self-Reliance Through District Partnership Programme (ESR) from 2006 to
2012; and Member of Commission on Strategic Development from 2007 to
2012. He also served as an Ex-officio Member of Social Enterprise Advisory
Committee from 2010 to 2012. Professor Cheung was a part-time member
of advisory board of the Central Policy Unit of the HKSAR Government.

Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung
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Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung
BREPEIAEHL

SBS, OBE, JP

Aged 66, Dr Yeung has been a Director of the Company since 31
December 2012. He has been the managing director of The Cross Harbour
(Holdings) Limited (“Cross Harbour”) (Stock Code: 0032) since 1 August
2001 and he also holds directorships in certain other members of the Cross
Harbour group. Dr Yeung holds a doctoral degree in management. Prior
to joining Cross Harbour, he had held various key management positions
in the Government of Hong Kong, where he last served as the Deputy
Director of Immigration; and in the private sector, where he last worked as
the chief executive of a large trading consortium. Dr Yeung is a member of
the Basic Law Promotion Steering Committee, the CUHK Advisory Group
on Undergraduate Studies in Business, the Hong Kong PolyU CPCE Advisory
Committee and the HKU SPACE Foundation Steering Committee.

MAK Chun Keung
ZEiRAE

Non-Executive Director JE#TE S

Aged 72. Mr Mak has been a Director of the Company since 23 May 2001.
He joined The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited ("KMB") in
1994, appointed Commercial Director in 2001 and retired in February
2006. He was Director of KMB's first two joint ventures to operate public
bus services in People’s Republic of China. Mr Mak has over twenty years
of experience in international banking and finance, and has held senior
executive positions in foreign and local banking institutions throughout his
career.

Independent Non-Executive Director B 3FH1TE &
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John Anthony MILLER
HER

Non-Executive Director JEEITE S
SBS, OBE, MPA (Harvard), BA (London), FHKloD

Aged 62. Mr Miller has been a Director of the Company since 20 March
2008. Mr Miller retired from the Civil Service in February 2007 as Permanent
Representative of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of China to
the World Trade Organization in Geneva. Key positions held over a career
spanning 35 years prior to Mr Miller’s retirement include Permanent Secretary
for Financial Services and the Treasury 2002-2004, Director of Housing and
Chief Executive of the Housing Authority 1996-2002, Director-General of
Trade 1993-1996, Director of Marine 1991-1993, Information Coordinator in
the Chief Secretary’s Office 1989-1991 and Private Secretary to the Governor
1979-1982. Mr Miller is a non-executive director of Transport International
Holdings Limited, The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited,
SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited and SUNeVision Holdings
Limited, and is chairman of Hong Kong Business Aviation Centre Limited, a
partly-owned subsidiary of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited. Mr Miller holds
an MPA degree from Harvard University and a BA degree from London

University.

Edmond HO Tat Man
32 XX

Non-Executive Director JEE/TE S
MA(Cantab), MBA, FCILT, MHKIoD

Aged 51. Mr Ho has been a Director of the Company since 13 October 2008.
Mr Ho has been a Director of Transport International Holdings Limited (“TIH")
and of The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited (“KMB") and
Long Win Bus Company Limited (“LWB"), both wholly-owned subsidiaries
Mr Ho joined KMB in September 1998 and
served as Finance and Administration Director from January 1999 to April

of TIH, since 1 January 2001.

2003. He was promoted to Deputy Managing Director of TIH, KMB and
LWB with effect from 10 January 2002. He has been appointed Managing
Director of KMB and LWB since 1 January 2007 and Managing Director of
TIH with effect from 8 April 2008. Positions previously held by him included
Investment Director of a merchant bank and executive director of a number
of transport infrastructure management and investment companies in Hong
Kong and on the Mainland of China. Mr Ho was formerly also a director
of four Sino-foreign joint venture companies of an international leading
soft drink brand. Mr. Ho is currently a Director of the Business Environment
Council and a member of the General Committee of the Employers’
Federation of Hong Kong. Mr Ho holds a Master’s degree in engineering from
Cambridge University and an MBA degree from The University of Hong Kong.
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Position held in the Group Date of appointment
RA KB IEEHRA ZERH
Dr John CHAN Cho Chak .
S Chairman 15 January 2001
§ 7 4
RS AL g e
GBS, JP
Ms Winnie NG Deputy Chairman 15 January 2001
FE iy m BlE/E —ZEE-F—H+1hH
Mr YUNG Wing Chung Deputy Chairman 20 November 2008
BKBITE BlE/E —ZEENF+—HZ-TH
%gﬁ%lfgiwj?\_ﬁ;g;SUI Independent Non-Executive Director 1 April 2001
7N N N Iy = s —%E@_ —
58S, MBE. JF B IENITES —EZ—FMHA—H
g;;&gi;?f;;g Independent Non-Executive Director 16 September 2004
ST BIERITES —ZEEMFEAA TR
GBS, OBE, JP
%?f_e;;;(;eﬁkg;;iHEUNG VET SV Independent Non-Executive Director 19 January 2009
5BS. P SR BN IEITES —EENF-AT+IA
%é;&n%i;l\é%%nichung Independent Non-Executive Director 31 December 2012
Nt ~ = = — CE=iL
58S OBE. Jp BIUERITES —E——H+_A=+—H
Mr Alex MO Tik Sang Managing Director 15 April 2008
ElmAkE ERAEKE —ZEEN\FOA+RA
Mr MAK Chun Keung Non-Executive Director 23 May 2001
BRI L FEITES —ET—HFHHA=+=H
gg?g;ﬁg‘tho”y MILLER Non-Executive Director 20 March 2008
1= = —F= — —
e o FERTEE ~FF/\F=A=1H
Mr Edmond HO Tat Man Non-Executive Director 13 October 2008
fAE X 4 FEITES —EEN\F+A+=H

Senior Management S REEAS

Position held in the Group

Year joined the Group

R 5= B fE BT MARERZ FH

Mr Alex MO Tik Sang Managing Director April 2008
EmAeLE ERELE —ZETN\FHA
Mr Thomas LO Sui Sing Chief Operating Officer September 2008
E iR E EIERE —ZEZEN\FNA
Ms Jo MAN Miu Sheung g:cltr—:‘;?rr;anaal Ofitsir &l Cempery; February 2007
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Mr Simon SIU Kar Chun (GGerr;tZizlrl\élﬂ?naa%er, e esidingg & Sele October 2010
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B S R R AR (A R I
Ms Ada LO Ching Operations & Planning Director October 2000
BEX+ EENRRERE —EETFL+H




B CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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ROADSHOW'’S CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

The Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”) have placed strong emphasis on maintaining high standards
of corporate governance and believe that good corporate governance
provides a solid and sound framework to assist the Board of Directors
(the “Board”) in fulfilling its duties and responsibilities to the Group
and its shareholders. The Board also believes that good corporate
governance practices are important to protect the interest of our
shareholders and to disseminate the investor’'s confidence.

In November 2004, The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

(the “Stock Exchange”) issued the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices and Corporate Governance Report (the “Stock Exchange
Code"), which took effect for accounting periods commencing on or
after 1 January 2005. The Stock Exchange Code sets out principles
of good corporate governance and two levels of recommendations,
namely:

e Code Provisions (listed companies are expected to comply with all
these provisions or to give considered reasons for any deviation);
and

e Recommended Best Practices (listed companies are encouraged to
comply with these recommendations or to give reasons for any
deviation).

On 14 March 2005, the Board established the “RoadShow Code on
Corporate Governance” (the “RoadShow Code”) and the Company
has implemented the RoadShow Code since then. On 8 March

2006, the Board approved and adopted a number of new sections

of the RoadShow Code which, among other things, rectified the

two deviations from the code provisions in the Code of Corporate
Governance Practices contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) as
reported in the Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2005.
The RoadShow Code was further updated in March 2009 in accordance
with the amendments to the Listing Rules which had become effective
from 1 January 2009.

Amendments to the Stock Exchange Code were announced in October
2011. The revised Appendix 14, Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the revised Stock Exchange Code) had
become effective from 1 April 2012.

The Stock Exchange allows issuers to devise their own codes on
corporate governance practices on such terms as they may consider
appropriate, provided reasons are given for any deviation from the
Stock Exchange Code or the revised Stock Exchange Code. The
RoadShow Code was most recently updated in March 2012 to reflect
the new requirements under the revised Stock Exchange Code.
Shareholders may obtain a hard copy from the Company Secretary on
request at any time.
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Compliance with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices

Under C1.2 of Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules (effective from 1 April
2012), management should provide all members of the Board with
monthly updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment
of the Company’s performance, position and prospects in sufficient
detail to enable the Board as a whole and each director to discharge
their duties. During the period from 1 April 2012 to 31 December
2012, management only provided monthly management accounts in
the quarterly financial report.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has fully complied throughout

the year ended 31 December 2012 with all applicable code provisions
set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (effective until
31 March 2012) and the Corporate Governance Code (effective from

1 April 2012) set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.
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%?%ﬁilﬁﬂ/_%$

EEg

+ 6

BTEERERERTA

BiE ETRAKEE14 FC12B(B
FMA—BREN)  EEEESARNESSS
BREBREEFER  FEENMIIEEAR
RIMERI - AR EHALERSREFENT
i NARNEESSRERSESETEY
E-B_Z-——FWNA-RE-ZT——F+=
A=+—H0H EREAREEMBKREA
RMHEANEEERER -

B EXEHEEEN  AREREBEE_T—ZF
ToAZt+—RALEE2ECR2ETLETR
BRI ER 14 Rl R EE R ERTFRAN(EB#AZE
—E-ZF=ZA=1+—H1) R(EEERTHD
(BT —FNA—BEEROWFAEERT
AT ©

e
NEDs
ZIHITEE T 1%?%@@,@&

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AUDIT COMMITTEE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE NOMINATION COMMITTEE
THZESE BEREES FHEEE REEES

NEDS 3 INEDs 2 INEDs |NEDS
3 ZiniEs BB TS BBV 2 ZEusnies
NEDs NED NED
y 2 zisias 1 5505ss 1 z5rumas

Overall Accountability

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are individually and
collectively accountable to the shareholders for the success and
sustainable development of the Company. The Board provides direction
and approval in relation to matters concerning the Company’s business
strategies, policies and plans whilst the day-to-day business operations
are delegated to the Managing Director and the senior management.
The Board is accountable to the shareholders and in discharging its
corporate accountability, every Director is required to pursue excellence
in the interests of the shareholders and fulfill his or her fiduciary duties
by applying the required level of skills, care and diligence to a standard
in accordance with the statutory requirements.

Board Composition

The Board is composed of eleven Directors as at 31 December 2012,
four of whom are Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs"). As at
31 December 2012, INEDs constitute more than one-third of the Board.
These INEDs bring a wide range of business and financial experience to
the Board, which contributes to the effective direction of the Group.
One of these INEDs possesses appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise. The Company
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has received from each INED a written confirmation of his or her
independence pursuant to the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that all INEDs are independent.

Details of all Directors, including the Chairman, Managing Director
("MD"), Executive Director, Non-Executive Directors ("NEDs") and INEDs
are set out on pages 30 to 35 of this Annual Report. The relationships
(including financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationships) among members of the Board are also disclosed. There is
no such relationship between the Chairman and the MD.

Board Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is responsible for promoting the success of the Group

by directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible and effective
manner. Each Director has a duty to act in good faith in the best
interests of the Company. The types of decisions that are taken by the
Board include those relating to:

e the strategic plans and objectives of the Company;

e the monitoring and controlling of the Group’s operating and
financial performance;

e overseeing the management of relationships with stakeholders, including
shareholders, customers, Government, suppliers, employees and the
community; and

e the assessment and management of risk to which the Group is exposed.

Day-to-day management of the Company is delegated to the Managing
Director or the officer in charge who is required to report back to the
Board.

The Company has arranged directors and officers liability insurances for
its Directors and officers during the year.

Details of the responsibilities, membership, attendance and activities of
each board committee during the year are set out on pages 43 to 49
of this Annual Report.

Board Meetings and Attendance

The Board met regularly throughout the year to discuss the overall
strategy as well as the operational and financial performance of the
Group. All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major
changes that may affect the Group’s businesses, including relevant
rules and regulations. Written procedures are also in place for Directors
to seek independent professional advice in performing their Directors’
duties at the Company’s expense. No request was made by any Director
for such independent professional advice in 2012. Five Board meetings
were held during 2012 and the average attendance rate of Directors
was 100% (2011: 98%). As at the date of this report, the Chairman of
the Company has held a meeting with the NEDs (including the INEDs)
without the presence of the executive director.
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The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings in 2012 is BEEN T —FRONESZERLED
set out below: BeE 5T

Attendance of individual Directors at Board meetings in 2012

EESRN B HFETNESSSENHERR

Meetings Attended/Held

Pt BOTER

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

BYFHTES

Percentage
Aot

Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI

5/5
REERELT

100%

Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung

R4 >3

100%

Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung

i B °/5

100%

Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung (appointed on 31 December 2012)

0/0
BEREt (R ——F+-A=+—HEZHF)

N.A.
&M

Non-Executive Directors:

FYITES

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak (Chairman)

5/5
RAEEELT (27)

100%

Ms Winnie NG (Deputy Chairman)

5/5
thEgRt (BxE)

100%

Mr YUNG Wing Chung (Deputy Chairman)

N 5/5
BKBRE (BIERF)

100%

Mr MAK Chun Keung

iR A >3

100%

Mr John Anthony MILLER

s 5/5
wmEgEA

100%

Mr Edmond HO Tat Man

5/5
A A

100%

Executive Director:

BTES:

Mr Alex MO Tik Sang

ik A >/

100%




Appointment of Directors

The Company follows formal procedures for the appointment of

new Directors. Appointments are first considered by the Nomination
Committee. The nomination is then submitted to the Board for decision
with reference to criteria that include professional knowledge and
industrial experience, personal ethics, integrity and personal skills, and
the time commitments of the candidates. Thereafter, all Directors are
subject to re-election by the shareholders at the general meetings in
their first year of appointment.

All NEDs are appointed for a term of not more than three years.

During the year, Dr John Yeung Hin Chung has been appointed as
independent non-executive director of the Company with effect from
31 December 2012.

Chairman and Managing Director

In order to reinforce independence, accountability and responsibility,
the posts of the Chairman and the MD are held separately by Dr John
Chan Cho Chak and Mr Alex Mo Tik Sang respectively. The Chairman
is responsible for ensuring that the Board is functioning properly

with good corporate governance practices and procedures, whilst the
MD is responsible for managing the Group’s businesses in a manner
consistent with the Group’s standards and in accordance with specific
plans, instructions or directions of the Board.

Directors’ Continuing Professional Development
Programme

Each newly appointed director is provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he has a proper understanding

of the Company’s operations and businesses as well as his or her
responsibilities under the relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations.

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. During the year, Directors

are provided with quarterly updates on the Company’s performance,
position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each
Director to discharge their duties. In addition, all Directors are
encouraged to participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company updates
Directors on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance
practices.

During the year, the Company has also organised one briefing session
conducted by a professional firm for the Directors. The briefing session
covered topic on board effectiveness.
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According to the records provided by the Directors, a summary of
training received by the Directors since 1 April 2012 up to 31 December
2012 is as follows:

BEERRENTCSE B2 -_F——-FNA
—RE-Z——F+_A=+—HACEZHE
FEEMT

Type of continuous professional

development programmes

FREXERRTERE

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

BYFHTES :

Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI
RRREL

Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung
FHREBL

A, B, C

Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung
RICREEK

Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung (appointed on 31 December 2012)
BEPEL (RoE——FE+ = A=+—HEZEHF)

B, C

Non-Executive Directors:

FHITES :

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak (Chairman)
PRIBZE LT ()

Ms Winnie NG (Deputy Chairman)
hBEEZ T (5xE)

A, B, C

Mr YUNG Wing Chung (Deputy Chairman)
BKBIE (BIFE)

Mr MAK Chun Keung
ERE T4

Mr John Anthony MILLER
R b

Mr Edmond HO Tat Man
Al

Executive Director:

HITES .

Mr Alex MO Tik Sang
EEERE

Notes:

A. Attending briefing session held by the Company

B. Reading materials and updates relating to the latest development of the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements provided by the Company

C. Attending briefing session(s) held by other listed companies or other professional institutions

Wi

A.
B.

C.

HERRRRITNEN G
MEARAREABMEMRARAEMEREERT
BERMAME RENEAM

HEAM ETARRAMEERBRTOEN &



Company Secretary

The Company Secretary supports the Chairman, Board and Board
Committees by ensuring good information flow and that Board policy
and procedures are followed. She advises the Board on governance
matters and facilities the induction and professional development of
Directors. The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and
is appointed by the Board. Although the Company Secretary reports to
the Chairman and Managing Director, all Directors may call upon her
for advice and assistance at any time in respect to their duties and the
effective operation of the Board and Board Committees. The Company
Secretary also plays an essential role in the relationship between

the Company and its shareholders, including assisting the Board in

discharging its obligations to shareholders pursuant to the Listing Rules.

BOARD COMMITTEES

In order to oversee various aspects of the Company’s affairs, the Board
has appointed various Board Committees. The majority of the members
of the Board Committees are either INEDs or NEDs. Each of the
committees has its specific terms of reference.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established on 12 September 2001. The
Committee currently comprises three NEDs and an ED.

The Executive Committee meets regularly throughout the year and on
an ad hoc basis if necessary to review business operations, financial
operations and ad hoc projects of the Group. These projects include
major acquisitions, investments and their funding requirements.
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During 2012, the Executive Committee held five meetings. The
attendance record of the members of the Executive Committee in
2012 is summarised below:

T THZBEHRTTIREH® -
BEZEBEeMER T ——FHdEosgt

Attendance of individual members at Executive Committee meetings in 2012

ERER - -FETNITRZESSRNHERR

Meetings Attended/Held

Non-Executive Directors:

FHITES

Percentage
Aot

FrifE / BT

Mr John Anthony MILLER (chairman)

s 5/5 100%
HEBELE (25 °
Dr John CHAN Cho Chak (deputy chairman)

X - 5/5 100%
PR (B1EE)
Mr Edmond HO Tat Man o/ -
fAEX L °
Executive Director:
HITESE
Mr Alex MO Tik Sang

5/5 100%

EELrE

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 11 April 2001. The
Committee currently comprises three INEDs and two NEDs. The MD is
required to attend each Audit Committee meeting as requested by the
members of the Committee. After each meeting, the Audit Committee
reports to the Board on significant issues. As at the date of this Annual
Report, the members of the Audit Committee are Dr Eric Li Ka Cheung
(chairman), Dr Carlye Wai-Ling Tsui, Professor Stephen Cheung Yan
Leung, Ms Winnie Ng and Mr Yung Wing Chung.

The Audit Committee is to assist the Board in fulfilling its
responsibilities relating to accounting and reporting practices, to
improve the credibility and objectivity of the Company’s financial and
other reports, and to strengthen the system of internal control, risk
management and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
The full terms of reference are available on the Company’s website
(www.roadshow.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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During 2012, the Audit Committee held three meetings. The Audit
Committee reviewed the following documents and matters in the
meetings:

e the Company’s Report of the Directors, Independent Auditor’s
Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December
2011 and 2011 Annual Report, with a recommendation to the
Board for approval;

e the Company’s Interim Financial Report for the six months ended 30
June 2012 and Interim Report 2012, with a recommendation to the
Board for approval;

e the Company’s accounting policies and its compliance with the
prevailing accounting standards of Hong Kong;

e the audit plan of the External Auditors for the year ended 31
December 2012, including the extent of coordination between the
Audit Committee and the auditors;

e the results of the external audits;

e the fees payable to the External Auditors of the interim review for
the six months ended 30 June 2012 and of the audit for the year
ended 31 December 2012, and terms of engagement of the External
Auditors for approval by the Board;

e the results of the 2011 and 2012 internal audits performed by an
outsourced independent professional firm (the “Internal Auditors”);

e the proposed internal audit plan for financial year 2012 of the
Internal Auditors including the extent of co-ordination between the
Audit Committee and the Internal Auditors;

e the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Group,
including (a) Entity Level — compliance with the Listing Rule
amendments to the Corporate Governance Code and related Listing
Rules; (b) BUS-TV Advertising business — controls over billing,
credit controls and receipt handling; (c) Treasury / Cash and bank
management — controls over Treasury / Cash and bank management;
(d) Information technology general control — (i) change controls
over programmes; (i) access controls over systems and data; (iii)
controls over computer operations; (iv) controls over backup and
contingency arrangements; and (v) controls over data privacy over
data confidentiality and access security; and (e) Follow-up of prior
year’s Internal Auditors’ findings;

* the revised terms of reference of Audit Committee; and

e the compliance by the Company with all applicable laws,
regulations, standards and best practice guidelines.

The audit committee Chairman and other committee members also
meet in separate private session with the external auditor once during
the year.
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The attendance record of the members of the Audit Committee in
2012 is summarised below:

BEREEENER T FHHFEasmit
m

Attendance of individual members at Audit Committee meetings in 2012

ERER-FE-—HFETHNELZESEBRNHESR

Meetings Attended/Held

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

BYFHTES :

Percentage

FrifE / BTEs B

Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung (chairman)
FREBL (FE)

3/3 100%

Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI
REREL

3/3 100%

Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung
RICREIX

3/3 100%

Non-Executive Directors:

FUITES

Ms Winnie NG
hEE L

3/3 100%

Mr YUNG Wing Chung
AXKBEAE

3/3 100%

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 23 March
2004. The Committee currently comprises two INEDs and a NED. As
at the date of this Annual Report, the members of the Remuneration
Committee are Dr Carlye Wai-Ling Tsui (chairman), Mr Yung Wing
Chung and Professor Stephen Cheung Yan Leung. Dr Carlye Wai-Ling
Tsui has been appointed as chairman of the Remuneration Committee
with effect from 14 March 2012.

The Remuneration Committee is intended to define and articulate

a compensation philosophy or strategy consistent with the strategic
objectives of the Company. To achieve this objective, the Remuneration
Committee formulates policies on and reviews the remuneration of

the Company’s Directors and senior management. The full terms of
reference are available on the Company’s website (www.roadshow.
com.hk) and the Stock Exchange's website.

The principal elements of the Company’s remuneration policy for
Directors and senior management are:

e no individual should determine his or her own remuneration
package;

FHWEEEN _TTMNF=A-_+=HMKIL °
ZESHAMMEBUFNTES R —RHEH
TESHAK - RAFHEHY  HTHZBEEKE
BREHNEBL(ER)  BREEERKCR
B - GRRELE 2= THARL
BEZIRTMRESER -

YHEEEERE —ERAQARKBIER R
—HAF A ERIE IR - WANARE - B
ERHAE FHEESHEAAREERS
RERABHFINER - S SRR o B
TEE[E 2 XA P2 B 48k (www.roadshow.
com.hk) R B 2 P4 ub & 69 o

EROEERERERAENFIHRENEE
e

o BAFNBEEEASGMNHMAS



remuneration packages should be on a par with companies with
whom the Company competes for human resources;

the Company should aim at designing remuneration packages that
attract and retain executives needed to run the Group successfully
and motivate executives to pursue appropriate growth strategies
whilst it should avoid paying an excessive amount for such purposes;

remuneration packages should reflect the performance and
responsibility of an individual, as well as the complexity of work;
and

remuneration packages should be structured in such a way that
they provide incentives to Directors and senior management to
improve their individual performance.

In 2012, the Remuneration Committee:

reviewed the remuneration package of Directors and made
recommendations to the Board;

reviewed and assessed criteria for awarding performance related
bonuses to Directors, having regard to the Group’s business
objectives and targets;

reviewed the principal elements of the remuneration packages of
senior management; and

assessed the composition of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting in 2012. The
attendance record of the members of the Remuneration Committee in
2012 is summarised below:
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Attendance of individual members at Remuneration Committee meeting in 2012

ERER B _HFETHNFHNESSESRNHERR

RNKBEE (H=F——F=A+mAEETLE)

Meetings Attended/Held Percentage
FtifE/ B7as Aotk
Independent Non-Executive Directors:
BYFHTES:
Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI (appointed as chairman with effect
from 14 March 2012) 171 100%
BRBEL (W —F=A1HAEZELE)
Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung
_ - 1/1 100%
RIECREIX
Non-Executive Director:
FHITES :
Mr YUNG Wing Chung (ceased to be chairman with effect
from 14 March 2012) 1/1 100%
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 8 March
2006 comprising three NEDs, two of whom are INEDs. As at the date
of this Annual Report, the members of the Nomination Committee are
Professor Stephen Cheung Yan Leung (chairman), Dr Carlye Wai-Ling
Tsui and Mr Yung Wing Chung. Professor Stephen Cheung Yan Leung
has been appointed as chairman of the Nomination Committee with
effect from 14 March 2012.

The principal functions of the Nomination Committee include:

e reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and
making recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes;

e identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members,
and selecting or making recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for Directorships;

e assessing the independence of INEDs; and

e making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the MD.

The full terms of reference are available on the Company’s website
(www.roadshow.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange’s website.

In 2012, the Nomination Committee:

e reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board and made
recommendations to the Board,;

e reviewed the independence of INEDs;

e made recommendations to the Board about the retirement and
re-appointment of Directors by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company;

e assessed the composition of the Nomination Committee; and

e assessed and selected potential candidates for the nomination of an
additional INED and made recommendations to the Board.
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The Nomination Committee held two meetings in 2012. The attendance

record of the members of the Nomination Committee in 2012 is
summarised below:

_E;E%TTTW/A @& o
— R

Attendance of individual members at Nomination Committee meetings in 2012

ERER B —HFETHREAZESERNHERR

Meetings Attended/Held

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
BYFHITES

Percentage

FrifE / BTEH Bt

Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung (appointed as chairman
with effect from 14 March 2012)

RICRMIT (BT —GF=F+mWAESEEE)

2/2 100%

Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI
REREL

2/2 100%

Non-Executive Director:

FHTES !

Mr YUNG Wing Chung (ceased to be chairman with effect from
14 March 2012)

DKBEE (H=F—=—F=HA1+HAETERE)

2/2 100%

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the Group's
financial statements for each financial year or period that give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and
cash flows for that year or period. In preparing the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012, the Directors have:

e selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently;

e made judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable;
and

e prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
Group’s financial statements. This responsibility extends to annual

and interim reports, “price-sensitive” announcements and other
financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, as well as reports
to regulators and information required to be disclosed pursuant to
statutory requirements. The responsibility of the External Auditors for
the audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2012 is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 64 to 65 of this Annual Report.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

In line with the sound practice that the independence of External
Auditors should not be impaired by other non-audit assignments, the
Group ensures that assignments other than statutory audits undertaken
by External Auditors should not have an adverse impact on their
independence. The External Auditors are also required to review their
relationship with the Group and furnish confirmation to the Audit
Committee confirming their independent status.

During 2012, the External Auditors (including any entity under common
control, ownership or management with the External Auditors or any
entity that a reasonable and informed third party having knowledge of
all relevant information would reasonably conclude as part of the audit
firm nationally or internationally) provided the following audit and non-
audit services to the Group. Details are set out below:

o 2 B 5 B

RIEEINEZBEN B LTS X B IEET
TIRHISSHORIFER - ARB RIS
BITEERZIAIN TER TS HHBIIERE
REEFE - SNEZBEN T AR RERAR
EMEE  UMERZESELERENER
WEFHBLIE -

RZT——%F » SN B (BB ERINE R
POV R B  ARERE  HEEM
BHEERNE =TT B E B2 E
ENER AN 2B BEIR D BaEE) R KER
HEZNIFEZRY - FREHIIWT :

2012 2011
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Audit
N 1,859,000 2,013,000
Fiz
Non-audit services
404,000 348,000

FREZARTS

An independence confirmation has been obtained from the External
Auditors confirming that for the year ended 31 December 2012 and
thereafter to the date of this Annual Report, the External Auditors
are independent of the Group in accordance with the independence
requirements of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate system of internal
controls and reviewing its effectiveness through the Audit Committee.
The Board and the Audit Committee have decided to outsource the
review of the internal controls function to the Internal Auditors and the
Board has delegated to the management the implementation of such
system of internal controls as well as the review of relevant financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management procedures.

Control Environment

The review of the internal control functions by the Internal Auditors
was based on the “COSO"” framework (the internal control framework
developed by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission).
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The expectations of the Company regarding duty and integrity are
clearly stated in the Company’s Code of Conduct and Staff Handbook,
as well as the policies and procedures manuals, which set out the

rules and policies, for the Directors and employees to follow. These
cover all aspects of administrative and operational activities, including
relationships with customers, suppliers, competitors and fellow staffs.
The internal control system covers every activity and transaction of

the Group in RoadShow. The system is based on clear stewardship
responsibilities, authorities and accountability. Our employees are an
important part of our internal system and the Group expects them

to contribute to that system. In addition to setting our guidelines,
principles and values, the Group recognises that an environment where
employees feel free to bring problems to management is also necessary
to make our internal control system successful.

Control Processes

Since 2004, the management and employees, assisted by the Internal
Auditors with particular professional experience in assessing risks

and control procedures, have evaluated the Company’s control
environment, conducted risk assessments of businesses and processes,
and documented those processes that are critical to the Group’s
performance.

Qualified personnel throughout the Group maintain and monitor the
system of controls on an ongoing basis and the MD and Chief Financial
Officer have to report any significant changes, deficiencies and material
weaknesses in, and fraud related to, internal controls to the Audit
Committee and the Internal Auditors.

Control Effectiveness

In accordance with the internal audit plan designed by the Internal
Auditors and agreed by the Audit Committee, the Internal Auditors
update and review the Company’s internal control system every year
in such a way that the update and review of all the major components
of the internal control system are completed within a period of three
years. The Internal Auditors provide recommendations to management
to improve internal controls after each review for management and
Audit Committee’s consideration.

During 2012, the Internal Auditors reviewed the processes and
procedures for compliance with relevant policies and procedures of the
Company. The scope covered the following processes:

e Entity Level
o compliance with the Listing Rule amendments to the Corporate
Governance Code and related Listing Rules

e BUS-TV Advertising
< controls over billing, credit controls and receipt handling
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e Treasury / Cash and bank management
o controls over Treasury / Cash and bank management

¢ Information technology general control
o change controls over programmes
o access controls over systems and data
o controls over computer operations
< controls over backup and contingency arrangements
o controls over data privacy over data confidentiality and access
security

e Follow-up of prior year's IA findings

Based on the findings and comments from the Internal Auditors and
Audit Committee, the Board considered the internal control system
effective and adequate for the year ended 31 December 2012.

No significant areas of concern that might affect the Company’s
shareholders were identified.

Business Ethics

Code of Conduct

The Group’s Code of Conduct for Directors and Employees (the
“CCDE") has long been established to ensure that both Directors
and employees are kept abreast of and fulfill a set of defined

ethical obligations and appropriate behaviours when conducting
businesses and/or performing their duties. The CCDE also provides
guidance on responsibility to the Group’s shareholders, customers
and the community. Any member in breach of the CCDE is subject
to disciplinary action. The CCDE is updated from time to time, taking
into account changes in the relevant legislation and the business
environment.

A set of Code of Conduct can be accessed through the Company’s
intranet and the Company’s website.

Price-sensitive information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of price-sensitive information, the Company

e is aware of its obligations under the Listing Rules and the overriding
principle that information that is expected to be price sensitive
should be announced immediately;

e conducts its affairs with close regard to the “Guide on disclosure of
price-sensitive information” issued by the Stock Exchange in 2002;

¢ has included in its Code of Conduct a strict prohibition on the
unauthorised use of confidential or insider information; and
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e has established and implemented procedures for responding to
external enquiries about the Group’s affairs. Senior staff of the
Group are identified and authorised to act as the Company’s
spokespersons and respond to enquiries in allocated areas of issues.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company required all its Directors to comply with the Model Code
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Following specific enquiry

by the Company, all Directors have confirmed that they fully complied

with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the

year 2012.

The Company’s Code on Securities Transactions is prepared on terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code.

Details of Directors’ interests in the shares of the Company are set out
in the Report of the Directors on pages 60 to 61 of this Annual Report.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers effective communication with shareholders is
essential to enable them to have a clear assessment of the Group's
performance as well as accountability of the Board. Major means of
communication with shareholders of the Company are as follows:

Information Disclosure on Corporate Website

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information
about the Group to all interested parties on a timely basis. The
Company maintains a corporate website (www.roadshow.com.hk)
where important corporate information and other relevant financial
and non-financial information such as annual reports and interim
reports to shareholders, notices and announcements, circulars and
other information is available for review by shareholders and other
stakeholders.

General Meetings with Shareholders

The Company’s annual general meeting and special general meetings
provide a useful platform for direct communication between the
Board and shareholders. Separate resolutions are proposed on each
substantially separate issue at the general meetings.

In accordance with the Listing Rules, the Company would arrange for
the notice to shareholders to be sent in the case of annual general
meetings at least 20 clear business days before the meeting and to

be sent at least 10 clear business days before in the case of all other
meetings. Under the Bye-laws of the Company, all shareholders have
21 clear days’ notice of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) and Special
General Meeting (SGM) for the passing of a special resolution, and 14
clear days’ notice of all other general meetings at which the Directors
and Committee chairmen or members are available to answer their
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guestions. A representative (usually the engagement partner) of the
External Auditor also attends the AGM and will take questions from

shareholders relating their audit of the Company’s financial statements.

The 2012 annual general meeting was held on 14 May 2012. Two
special general meetings were held during the year. The attendance
record of the Directors at the general meetings in 2012 is set out
below:

NTEHEBRRBFAE  YMERRELA
HEZADAFEHRROME

TR CFRRBFREN =T —-FAHA

TMARIT - FRBITTMARRERNRE ©
EEN T ZHFRTHRERS L E
BF

Attendance of individual Directors at general meetings in 2012

EESEN -2 -HFETHRRASHHERBR

AGM Attended/Held SGM Attended/Held

FrdifE / BTRRBFAE FHE/ BTRREIAE

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

BYFHTES :

Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI
FREEL

11 2/2

Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung
FREBEL

171 2/2

Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung
RIZCRER

11 2/2

Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung (appointed on 31 December 2012)
GREYEL (R=F——F+—_A=1+—H¥EZ()

0/0 0/0

Non-Executive Directors:

FHTES

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak (Chairman)
PRAERIE L (/%)

11 2/2

Ms Winnie NG (Deputy Chairman)
hBEE L (5xE)

171 2/2

Mr YUNG Wing Chung (Deputy Chairman)
AKBEE (BIERE)

11 2/2

Mr MAK Chun Keung
EIRE T4

171 2/2

Mr John Anthony MILLER
HP2RBELE

11 2/2

Mr Edmond HO Tat Man
fAlE A

171 2/2

Executive Director:

BITES:

Mr Alex MO Tik Sang
EmAERAE

11 2/2




Voting by Poll

Resolutions put to vote at the general meetings of the Company (other
than on procedural and administrative matters) are taken by poll. The
results of any voting by poll are announced and published as soon as
possible, but in any event no later than 30 minutes before the earlier
of the commencement of the morning trading session or any pre-
opening session on the business day following the meeting, on the
Stock Exchange’s and the Company’s website together with details of
the meeting, including the time and venue and major resolutions.

Shareholders’ Right

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders of

the Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the mandatory
disclosure requirement under Paragraph O of the Corporate Governance
Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules:

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on requisition
by shareholders

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, shareholders holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company and carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board of the Company, to convene a SGM for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition. The requisition
shall be deposited at our Hong Kong principal office at 9 Po Lun Street,
Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon, Hong Kong for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings by shareholders

The procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at an AGM
or SGM include a written notice of those proposals being submitted
by shareholders, addressed to the Share Registrar of the Company

in Hong Kong or the Company Secretary at the principal office. The
detailed procedures vary according to whether the proposal constitutes
an ordinary resolution or a special resolution, or whether the proposal
relates to the election of a person other than a Director of the
Company as a director. The relevant procedures are set out in the
Notice of AGM which accompanies the despatch of this Annual Report
to shareholders and will be included with the notice to shareholders of
any future AGM. The procedures for shareholders to convene and put
forward proposals at an AGM or SGM (including election of a person
other than a Director of the Company as a director) are available on
our website or on request to the Company Secretary.
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Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Enquires may be put to the Board by contacting either the Company
Secretary through (852) 2746 5200 or e-mail at cosec@roadshow.
com.hk or directly by questions at an AGM or SGM. Questions on the
procedure for convening or putting forward proposals at an AGM or
SGM may also be put to the Company Secretary at the same means.

Constitutional Documents

During 2012, amendments to certain Bye-laws of the Company were
approved by the shareholders of the Company at the annual general
meeting held on 14 May 2012, mainly (i) to give the Company more
flexibility in relation to its dividend policy and (ii) bring the constitution
of the Company in line with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

An updated version of the Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws
of the Company is available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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EEERE

The directors of RoadShow Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
(the “Directors”) have pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2012.

Principal place of business

The Company is a company incorporated in Bermuda and has its
registered office at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda and principal place of business at 9 Po Lun
Street, Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the provision of media sales
and management and administrative services for Multi-media
On-board (“MMOB” or “BUS-TV"), transit vehicle exteriors
(“BUS-BODY") and interiors (“IN-BUS") advertising businesses
and the operation of media advertising management services
through marketing advertising spaces on transit vehicle exteriors,
interiors, shelters and outdoor signages and the provision of
advertising agency services.

The principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.
The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations
of the operations of the Group during the financial year are set
out in note 2 to the financial statements.

Financial statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012
and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at
that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 66 to
129 of this Annual Report.

Dividends

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK7.50 cents per share (2011: HK6.11 cents per share) in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2012.
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Fixed assets

Details of movements in fixed assets during the year are set out
in note 13 to the financial statements.

Share capital

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note
24 to the financial statements. There were no movements
during the year.

Transfer to reserves

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company, before
dividends, of HK$74,817,000 (2011: loss of HK$48,637,000)
has been transferred to reserves. Details of movements in the
reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and note
24 to the financial statements, respectively.

Directors

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of
this report were:

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak Chairman
GBS, JP
Ms Winnie NG Deputy Chairman

Mr YUNG Wing Chung

Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI*
BBS, MBE, JP

Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung*
GBS, OBE, JP

Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung*
BBS, JP

Deputy Chairman

Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung*

SBS, OBE, JP

Mr Alex MO Tik Sang

Mr MAK Chun Keung

Mr John Anthony MILLER
SBS, OBE

Mr Edmond HO Tat Man

*  Independent Non-Executive Director

(Appointed on
31 December 2012)

Managing Director

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Law 86(2), Dr John

YEUNG Hin Chung holds office only until the forthcoming

Annual General Meeting and shall then be eligible for re-

election at that meeting.
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Directors (continued)

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Law 87 and Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”), Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI, Mr MAK Chun Keung and Mr
John Anthony MILLER retire from the Board of Directors (the
“Board”) by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal
statutory obligations.

Directors’ interests and short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures

The Directors who held office at 31 December 2012 had the
following interests in the shares of the Company, its holding
companies, subsidiaries and other associated corporations
(within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO")) at that date as recorded in the register of directors’
and chief executives’ interests and short positions required to be

=)

BREARANARMAETRARBTEH AR
SRAERRBERES EMHRA( EmRR )M
BI14ABRTE  REKREL BERALTERESE
REKERERTESTS([EFTE]) RN
RERITHRRBFAE LREBE -

AR B o E AR AT Y B A ) 3 A R AR B AS SR AT Y
BRBFAS LEREEEINEFITLEMNR—F
AERARBAREEMMBLAARIEESNE - &
1R BR B (B —MOXTE R E SN ) 7Y ) K & R 19 AR 75
=X K

EERKRG AEROREEZNERR
KB

BE(EBFLHEGRINDEI2HREAFENE
ERERRTBAEREMNARERMICE - 1
TE-F+ A=+ -HEENEERZER
ARE - HEEAR - ME Qe REMEREE
(ERR(BHLBEHROD)) OB NP HEEAT

Ns
<

N

T
kept under section 352 of the SFO:
Interests in issued shares RERTROPHES
Total % of total
number of issued shares
Personal Family Corporate Other  shares held H25
Beneficial interests interests interests interests interests fige EBERORG
B BARE RikER ARER HitfEs ROEE Bk
The Company: Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
AR BREERE01 THEER
Ms Winnie NG (Note 1) RER LT (1) 1,000,000 = = 123,743 1,123,743 0.1%
Transport International Holdings Limited (“TIH") (Note 2): Ordinary shares of HK$1 each
BEERERERAR (B (HiZ2)  SREEB¥ 1 THLTER
Dr John CHAN Cho Chak  FR#EZfE+ 2,000 — — — 2,000 0.0%
Ms Winnie NG (Note 3) RS L (H5E3) 41,416 — — 21,000,609 21,042,025 5.2%
Notes: s

1. Ms Winnie NG has interest in 123,743 shares in the Company as
a beneficiary of certain private trusts which beneficially held the
shares.

2. TIH is the ultimate holding company of the Company.

3. Ms Winnie NG has interest in 21,000,609 shares in TIH as a
beneficiary of certain private trusts which beneficially held the
shares.

1. MBEEZIUETFAAGENIZAINEEARAR
123,743 B R MZELAGTESZEE L
s o

2. HBINARRKRKERATE °

3. MABZLIUETAAGENIZAGNEEEH S
21,000,609 WM HER  MZRELAGTERS
B LS o



Directors’ interests and short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures
(continued)

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors or any of
their spouses or children under eighteen years of age has
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or other associated corporations, as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.

Confirmation of independence

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
Independent Non-Executive Directors to be independent.

Substantial shareholders’ and other persons’
interests and short positions in shares,
underlying shares and debentures

EERKRD  HAEROREEENESZR
KRB (E)

B Lt & 4 - %%ﬁﬁfﬂﬂ@ﬁ{%ﬁﬂiﬁ+ﬂﬁw’]
FLEMERARAF - HEMZERLF - HBLQ
SRR BB A $EE§HxT%EXTf%E’§¢%
BRE(EFRBEHEM)EI2EREREFEN
BLMAEBRARB(LTRARIESTETESFR
SHRETRDENE AR RN EABEIRR

B RR

ARBEARE ETARANE 3. 131!%6’]%%;% T%J%R
BUFNTESNFEB Y MERE  LRAE
EBLFATESHABYIE -

TERRREMATIRERSG HEARGORK
EREENEZRAR

At 31 December 2012, the interests or short positions of WZZE—Z—HF+_A=+—"H BARAI=EEN
the persons (not being Directors and chief executives of the & =T AEINE ATFEEARRQ T3 EF M
Company) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company A8EtEE (F & B(B 5 R E &M )YE XV ) K
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part IR REER O ERS AR - BRRB(EHF K
XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and The HIE{EHIYEXVEFE 2R3N HEEDMERL
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to Divisions 2 FINREBBH AR SMAER AR @ A EE(ESR N
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and required to be entered into the  EJ & {5 )55 336 (K BFH N AR A FE & & LM
register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of & & FBWT :
the SFO were as follows:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
SRAEGESK.ITHLER
% of total
Total number issued
Registered Corporate of shares shares
shareholders interests held HEEBERT
HRRE AFER FERpEE RAED
Substantial shareholders TERR
TIH (Note) HE(M2) — 728,127,410 728,127,410 73.01%
KMB Resources Limited KMB Resources Limited 728,127,410 — 728,127,410 73.01%
Other person Hit AL
DJE Investment S.A. and others  DJE Investment S.A. & EAtl 69,956,000 — 69,956,000 7.01%
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Substantial shareholders’ and other persons’
interests and short positions in shares,
underlying shares and debentures (continued)

Note: KMB Resources Limited owns 728,127,410 shares in the

Company. KMB Resources Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of TIH, which is accordingly deemed to be interested in the
same number of shares held by KMB Resources Limited in the
Company under the SFO.

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests or short positions
required to be recorded in the register kept under section 336
of the SFO have been notified to the Company.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
date of this Annual Report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

Directors’ interests in contracts

No contract of significance to which the Company, any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party, and in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

Major customers and suppliers

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively
during the financial year is as follows:

TERRREMATIRRSG - HERSO R
EREENEZRARE (8)

Bz :  KMB Resources Limited #% 728,127,410 B AR
7fo" o KMB Resources Limited A8 #) & &t

DA MBRB(EEFERBERN)  ZBERA

T?’Eﬁ KMB Resources Limited FriF 8RB &5 -

B Lt & 4 -
(BEHFNMHE

gk/ﬂ()?. °

ARBYLEENE E AL ARE
& DI)FE 336 R FEM B M AR

EHNARERE

BEARARCAECRENENRAESH
M RAFHNNEBY  ARAECHERF LR

FIRERNRRFIRE -

EENROER

ARE - HEFAERAR Bﬁ% EEAEEG]
REAYESDERITEMNEERY  REARFRES
BA$¢J+§E,%ZEIiﬁilﬁﬁﬂ%?ﬁ;ﬁéﬁﬂ

= o

FREFRKER

RAFREREAR  AEEXTERXP RHEEREEN
HHERBEER D RIEIIMT

Percentage of the Group's total

EAREAHE D
Sales Purchases
HE BE
The largest customer BREF 10%
Five largest customers in aggregate AREEAT 22%
The largest supplier BRAMER 34%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate EARBERE T 56%

At no time during the year have the Directors and their
associates had any interest in these major customers and
suppliers.

During the year, The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933)
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of TIH, is the

largest supplier of the Group.
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Purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s
listed securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-Laws and the Law in Bermuda.

Directors and senior management profiles

Profiles of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 30 to 36 of this Annual Report.

Five year financial summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 130 to
131 of this Annual Report.

Retirement schemes

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
and participates in employee pension schemes organised by the
local governments of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC")
under the regulations of the PRC. All these retirement schemes
are defined contribution plans and their particulars are set out
in note 28 to the financial statements.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak

Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2013
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HRABERERAGARRNBLZEMEE

Independent auditor’s report to the
shareholders of RoadShow Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of RoadShow Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages 66 to
129, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 December 2012, the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

B INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
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Auditor’s responsibility (continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2012 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

18 March 2013
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B CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
mEBRER
For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-Z--F+-A=+-HLEFEGRBEFHE)

Note 2012 2011
PeE $'000 $'000
Fr T
Turnover —E 201 2&3 421,154 371,491
Other revenue and other net income HAb U A R H AUk =5 58 4 22,019 25,837
Total operating revenue KEWALEE 443,173 397,328
Operating expenses ReEER
Royalty, licence and management fees BENE HHEREEE (143,006) (133,893)
Cost of production BUERL AN (81,354) (71,012)
Staff expenditure B I KA (72,743) (60,047)
Depreciation e (10,784) (9,699)
Cost of inventories BFERA (6,575) (6,517)
Repairs and maintenance HEERRE (4,378) (6,802)
Other operating expenses Hin & & H (27,843) (30,165)
_.Jotal operating expenses ... wERmRS (346,683) (18135
Profit from operations RERF 96,490 79,193
Impairment loss on other non-current HiERBemEEmE
financial assets EiE 5 — (109,606)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARMNEE 26 — (468)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREATRA,(&E) 6 96,490 (30,881)
Income tax Frig®t 7(a) (16,991) (12,863)
Profit/(loss) for the year REERA(ER) 79,499 (43,744)
Attributable to: BT
Equity shareholders of the Company RATRER 10 74,817 (48,637)
Non-controlling interests FERER 4,682 4,893
Profit/(loss) for the year REERF(FHE) 79,499 (43,744)
Earnings/(loss) per share BREBA,(FE) GE)
(in Hong Kong cents) 12
Arising from the Group’s operations ELEBREEKEEK 7.50 6.11
Arising from impairment loss on other EEBHMERBSREE
non-current financial assets WEEE — (10.99)
Basic AR 7.50 (4.88)
Diluted mE N/A TEH N/A FEFR

RoadShow Holdings Limited E Annual Report 2012

The notes on pages 73 to 129 form part of these financial F73BEEZF129BMMMTIB AT BRI — I
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders {5 o KREEFEMNAATIRBEIR EN ISR T
of the Company attributable to the year are set out in note 11. 11 e



B CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEZHEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

B

EIR-CH+ A=t -HIEFEGRBREE)

2012 2011
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Profit/(loss) for the year RNEERRN(EE) 79,499 (43,744)
Other comprehensive income AEEHMEE KR
for the year (after tax and (RBREHSBEARR) !
reclassification adjustments):
Available-for-sale debt securities: AEEEEEHES
Changes in fair value recognised in the FARBRANEBEREEN
fair value reserve during the year NAREEEE 1,750 (367)
Exchange differences on translation BREBBUINEBETBEREW
of the financial statements of operations  [E X =48
outside Hong Kong 74 41
Reclassification of exchange reserve REEBBUNERKEH 2 EN
on disposal of operations outside & 5 e
Hong Kong — (751)
Total comprehensive income for the year ZAFE2HENFLE 81,323 (44,451)
Attributable to: BT :
Equity shareholders of the Company RATRR 76,641 (49,344)
Non-controlling interests FERER 4,682 4,893
Total comprehensive income for the year ZAFEZHENFHLE 81,323 (44,451)

The notes on pages 73 to 129 form part of these financial £

st

atements.
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B CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
REEEREXR

At 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
R-E-—ZF+ZA=+—HURBYFE)

Note 2012 2011
FisE $'000 $'000
Fr T
Non-current assets FREBEE
Fixed assets BEEEE 13 49,122 64,672
Non-current prepayments EREFETRIE 14 3,741 1,667
Other non-current financial assets HiFERBEMERE 16 81,296 80,872
Deferred tax assets EXERIBEE 23(b) 2,618 3,060
136,777 150,271
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 17 1,164 1,306
Amount due from ultimate holding W R AIER DA
company EAQE] 18(a) 5,004 5,004
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries EWRE 2B AR E 18(d) 14,695 6,165
Accounts receivable FE W BR X 19 117,567 117,252
Other receivables and deposits HtEWERA R ZES 17,794 7,010
Prepayments AR 14 — 9,580
Current tax recoverable FE Uk 7S B Fi 1E 23(a) 3,491 215
Pledged bank deposits BIEFRTER 20 60,200 41,200
Bank deposits and cash RITFERERE 21 409,791 428,071
629,706 615,803
Current liabilities REBAE
Accounts payable FE S BRX 22 2,276 4,370
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ERRZKE AT HRE 18(d) 7,849 6,442
Other payables and accruals HitnEFRARETER 91,628 110,650
Current tax payable FE AR BT I8 23(a) 8,459 2,801
110,212 124,263
Net current assets MEEEFE 519,494 491,540
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERABAR 656,271 641,811
Non-current liabilities ERBEME
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEBEERE 23(b) 157 81
NET ASSETS EEFE 656,114 641,730
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAERFEES
Share capital [N 24(b) 99,737 99,737
Reserves HES 546,441 530,739
Total equity attributable to equity AQFRREGER
shareholders of the Company FER) 646,178 630,476
Non-controlling interests FERER 9,936 11,254
TOTAL EQUITY AR 656,114 641,730

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on KEEER T —=F= A+ /\AXEL T &
18 March 2013. e

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak Alex MO Tik Sang
BRAEE T FHEE

Chairman Managing Director
FE BT

RoadShow Holdings Limited E Annual Report 2012
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B BALANCE SHEET
EERER

At 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
R-E-—ZF+ZA=+—HURBYFE)

Note 2012 2011
Bt 5E $'000 $'000
Fr T
Non-current assets FEREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries B ARIKRE 15 62,835 62,835
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE UL BY 1B A B SR IE 18(c) 512,827 510,493
575,662 573,328
Current assets REEE
Amount due from ultimate holding FE & &R DT
company I8 18(a) 5,004 5,004
Other receivables and deposits HitEW R R RS 1,392 949
Pledged bank deposits EHEFRTER 20 60,200 41,200
Bank deposits and cash RITEARERES 21 161,907 174,805
228,503 221,958
Current liabilities mEEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAT BT B A R FRIE 18(b) 208,165 194,697
Other payables and accruals HithEF R R ETER 5,540 6,441
213,705 201,138
_ Netcurrentassets  HBEE¥E 14798 20,820
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABERABAE 590,460 594,148
Non-current liabilities FRBER
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE A BT B8 2 Bl 7R IE 18(b) 133,159 72,493
NET ASSETS EEFE 457,301 521,655
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRERFEES 24(a)
Share capital &N 99,737 99,737
Reserves HE: 357,564 421,918
TOTAL EQUITY EREH 457,301 521,655

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directorson RKEZE@NRN _-_ZE—=F=H+ )\ B AW Fnl %
18 March 2013. °

&

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak Alex MO Tik Sang
REZEEL EHE
Chairman Managing Director

# E M4 7102
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The notes on pages 73 to 129 form part of these financial 8
statements. % o
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mERREBX

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-_Z-"F+-A=1+-HULFEGRBYHE)

B CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARARRER
Retained
profits/
(ac- Non-
Note Share Share General ~Contributed Other  Fairvalue  Exchange  cumulated controlling
Wzt capital ~ premium reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve losses) Total interests  Total equity
MEE RERF/
B RBEE -REk  BARE®  AtEE i NERE (ZHER) A fekER  BREE
§'000 §'000 §000 §000 §000 §000 §000 §000 $000 §000 §'000
T T T T T T T T T T T
Balance ot 1 anuary 2011 —F-—E-A-REH 9737 531769 89 0 (E09) w0 W 818 TN 74T 735668
Changes in equity for 2011 =B——FHEHEH:
(Loss)/profit for the year REE(5E) /2 - - - = = = — 88 (4863 4,893 (43,744)
Other comprehensive Eft2ENE
income — — — — — (367) (340) — (707) — (707)
Total comprehensive income ~ AEE2ANHEE - - - - - (367) (340)  (48,637)  (49.344) 4,893 (44,451)
Dividends approved in respect 5B LEEE HEH
of the previous year Ra 11(b) = = = = = = = (4837 (88372) = (48372)
Transfer of reserves upon LENBARARER
disposal of subsidiaries & - — @31) = — — = 237 = (1,115) (1,115)
Balance at RZB--§+ZfA=1-A
31 December 2011 and R=%-Z%-§-
1 January 2012 i 99,737 531,769 602 (200) (605) (127) 14,181 (14,881) 630,476 11,254 641,730
Changes in equity for 2012 —F-ZEHEHEE .
Profit for the year REEEF - - - - - - - 817 74817 4,682 79,499
Other comprehensive A2 EkE
income - - - - - 1,750 74 - 1,824 - 1,824
Total comprehensive income ~ AEE2ANHAR - - - - - 1,750 M 74817 76,681 4,682 81,323
Dividends approved in respect 5B FEEE 4
of the previous year RE 11(b) - - - - - - - (60,939)  (60,939) - (60,939)
Dividend paid to non- EfFEERERN
controlling interests RE - - - - - - - - - (6,000) (6,000)
Balance at R=B-Z£+=f=1-8
31 December 2012 s 99,737 531,769 602 (200) (605) 1,623 14,255 (1,003) 646,178 9,936 656,114

The notes on pages 73 to 129 form part of these financial

statements.
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B CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
RERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-Z--F+-A=+-HLEFEGRBEFHE)

Note 2012 2011
Bt $'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Operating activities ReEEH
Profit/(loss) before taxation RBAEF (BE) 96,490 (30,881)
Adjustments for: R
Depreciation wE 10,784 9,699
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEBEEEEE 1,061 105
Write-down of inventories FEHOR — 19
Reversal of write-down of inventories 1 B 77 & MU (110) —
Impairment loss on other non-current HtnFRBEMEERE
financial assets B8 — 109,606
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBRRNEE — 468
Interest income FE WA (11,885) (9,815)
Foreign exchange gain B 5 W = (1,329) (1,766)
Operating profit before changes in EEESEEHAMN
working capital reEEF 95,011 77,435
Decrease in non-current prepayments B BN FRAT TR IR D — 9,580
Decrease in current prepayments R ENFEAS RIE R 9,580 =
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERD /() 252 (346)
Increase in amounts due from fellow BE Uy (B A BT 8 & B SRR I8
subsidiaries N (8,530) (2,298)
Increase in accounts receivable JE s BR 303 0 (315) (38,950)
(Increase)/decrease in other receivables HttEWIRR R ZS
and deposits (), (10,615) 1,885
Decrease in accounts payable FE S BRFUR A (2,094) (359)
Increase in amounts due to fellow B ERME A R RIE
subsidiaries N 1,407 2,072
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and HthEM R K ETEH
accruals CRL2),/#Em (19,018) 51,231
Cash generated from operations RELETHNES 65,678 100,250
Tax paid [EENE R
— Hong Kong Profits Tax paid — BENBBHEH (14,002) (17,609)
— The People’s Republic of China (“PRC”") — BN FEARELNE
income tax paid (T#E ) Fris (94) =
Net cash generated from operating RELETHH
activities REFHE 51,582 82,641

# H M4 7102
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Il CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
RERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-Z-—F+-A=+-HLFERBEHE)

Note 2012 2011
Mt $'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Investing activities REETEH
Payment for purchase of fixed assets BABREEEMNM (8,770) (27,078)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets HEBEEEMBRIE 10,401 —
Net cash outflow from disposal of HEMBARNRER
subsidiaries FEE 26 — (2,337)
Repayment of loan from investee WHREANEHEEEN — 27,064
Interest received 2 W FE 13,056 10,498
Decrease/(increase) in bank deposits E@H BEHPRITER
maturing over three months WA, (&) 15,274 (27,954)
Net cash generated from/(used in) ®E(AR)BREZEH
investing activities BE&FE 29,961 (19,807)
Financing activities BMEED
Increase in pledged bank deposits EIEARITFFIG N (19,000) =
Dividends paid EHRE (60,939) (48,372)
Dividend paid to non-controlling BT FIEZERBRRM
shareholders ’E (6,000) —
_.Neteash used injfinancing activiies’ 1 ARBARBNRSFE  (85939) (48372) .
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReRBRSE@YCRD)
cash equivalents B nFEE (4,396) 14,462
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—BHEREER
1 January Re%EY 156,033 141,036
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXSHHY 483 535
Cash and cash equivalents at RT-B=+—-HHRER
31 December REeZEEY 21 152,120 156,033

The notes on pages 73 to 129 form part of these financial F73BHZF129B B ARM EHRERH —
statements. % o



B NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBETRIN  GRBEHE)

1.

Significant accounting policies

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("the Listing Rules”). A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and
the Company. Note 1(c) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2012 comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that certain investments (see note 1(e)) are stated at
their fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

1. TEEHHEE
(a) EHIEH

AMBHRRCDERBEGAMLG(E
BRI NS DEMOAAER(EEY
BRELENN(EEHBHRELEAD]) -
BEMBERNENEEM RS E
A (FEGFENNKER G E
AN REE - BELREARALER
(RAGHDOBEEREmE - NE K
RNV EBEMARZIMARAAER
(FEHxLEMRRDT ERHRR ) & E B
BRE AEERBOEIZESFAHEM
ZEN X -

BEGAMAGCBME THT REE
FKEBMBREER)  ZEHTRE
BT RN AEE R ARAZREFH
B R AR AT 4R B R o P RE1(c)
5 E Y) R e R R K B A R R AT R
RRAERTZE R B A X AN B 7 ok A IR R
RAMBESTHHENEARREDN

(b) MBHRRERERE

HE-T-——F+- A=+ BLFE
MEARBRRBERARAREKEL
A AEE]) -

REMBRRARANGFEEERES
RAE - R TRERME1(e)) IR
ERAREEE -

RERFT (AT HREEL)DNHTH
wEE BEEEBRFLYETRRNE
AREE - BfF WARXEN®RES
BAE L HE - AT RRER - BET AR
BRENDREEELRREEZBREERX
FERATHEBAEMNSRAMAERE
RMEL - SERDEKEZERA
AARRREMENRRHEENRAGER
HEMEHBNER -ERGERTESR
B Z ST 88 -
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Il NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREERERN  GIRBEE)

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(c)

(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements and estimates made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect on
the financial statements are discussed in note 31.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Company. These include
the amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures concerning transfers of financial assets. The
amendments to HKFRS 7 require certain disclosures to
be included in the financial statements in respect of all
transferred financial assets that are not derecognised
in their entirety and for any continuing involvement
in transferred financial assets that are derecognised in
their entirety, irrespective of when the related transfer
transaction occurred. However, an entity needs not
provide the disclosures for the comparative period in
the first year of adoption. The Group did not have
any significant transfers of financial assets in previous
periods or the current period which require disclosure in
the current accounting period under the amendments.

None of the other developments are relevant to the
Group’s financial statements and the Group has not
applied any new standard or interpretation that is not
yet effective for the current accounting period.

1. TESHBXRE)
(b) M BHREREE(H)

(c)

har REARREGEEERT - HE
AAAETMERTERERLETNZE
B BEEITNZBEANER  LfHE
ATEFMETHEMRRRBRE AR
& QBT ME LB AT B B R 2R
HIRR MR -

FRAEEEERMCEEMBRELER)
BIELHHBERERAEATZENHE X
fRET T RMIEE 31 &5

B BEED
BEEMASCEMEKEERBRE
HADMBIRER  IRAEERAR
ARG HEEREN - ZFEFB
RERSREEERNEAMBRS
HRADET R 2@ TA - HFINEE -
(BEEMBREERDFTHRNETRE
AEMBRRPITE KK E AR L HE
RNCERTREERHEAZHE
LRRANCHEREENKESARER
HETHE THEBERR SR
£ AT BERBARRKANEFEL
HERHEZEE ASBERBEHERK
AHBY BEETEARBETARAE
AHRELRENEASREESE -

HEEIMErASENYHHRIER
AEBETEEBEAASTHBNDRE
BHFTER R -



1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are
taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s
net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders
of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated income statement and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and the
equity shareholders of the Company.

1. TEETTHEME)
(d) WEARARFERER

MWBRARARAKEZFNER X
SEAEZEH - EEBNHHRELER
RURERB P R FHEEG®E -
REEEGER  ARATENEER
SRBHRERENA -

oY B8 2 Bl IR & m 15 B 1 I R 4R i BF A
MEMBHRERA  BEEEGELKLAH
Bl REARTBENEHRERS @ Rk
SEARERNR HMELNERRE
BAN BRREGFAMERRE T
2EHEHE SEARAENRIZMESL
MAZREBERRERERWSARNT
A ERRNAREREEY BRE
BENBER -

FERES BT IR ARRERXAEE
BENMBLAREE MASEYER®
M B RZ R 2 WA A 9 T 1 (R B O
o BEAEEBRENZTESAAN
EUMBRARTEENANET  NERE
Batms  AEENEERAAEE
1R JE PR RRRE 21 PR A MY B 2 B T AR F
BEMNLD - FHEEAIERES -

FEEBERBARGREERABRANE
NN NN S R e sl R
Re AREXREANNFEREINESR
BRXRRGEAEHERERFTUANE T
BREESMARABRRNFABSARE
EAEREREGE R
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Il NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREERERN  GIRBEE)

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

(e)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset
(see note 1(e)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or jointly
controlled entity.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 1(i)).

Other investments in debt securities and equity
interest

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in debt securities and equity interest, other than
investments in subsidiaries, are as follows:

Investments in debt securities and equity interest are
initially stated at fair value, which is their transaction
price unless fair value can be more reliably estimated
using valuation techniques whose variables include
only data from observable markets. Cost includes
attributable transaction costs, except where indicated
otherwise below. These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their
classification:

FEETEERE)
(ORGP ER e e

AR AN A TS B DT
KEBHIE BREXRHIE B
b € 2% 7 90 B4 LR 26 T 9 10 AR 4 2
MBE - DRBREHERNED BT
ERREE  HIERBEN -

EAKBRERK BRI MNZEHE R
RHEZMBRARNEMERIE A
EMEENBEXEERERER -1
KREEHEEBRZANE R R EFH
TSR AAEBERR FHAZER
RNREREREERN L2 EE(RH
?HD&HMﬁmﬂﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬂj
HRZEFIERIEMA

//

ARAIEERBERANMBRRKRET
WRARBEEE (L E 1) 515 -

(e) HMBEHEESRRERE

R E R AR BB R R AN E
B MERENBERNT

BEREFRBREREDLRAARBET
RAEXZER BKIEIAEBERIA
%%13%T%ﬁﬁ%§FMﬁ@E%
FOSHHEE KABREHEBRZK
PN EMT%W%H%°i7&§E&
BEEDBEERLNTHEAR



1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Other investments in debt securities and equity

interest (continued)

Investments in debt securities and equity interest
held for trading are classified as current assets. Any
attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit
or loss as incurred. At each balance sheet date the
fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss does not include any
dividend and interest earned on these investments as
these are recognised in accordance with the policies set
out in notes 1(o0)(ix) and (viii).

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the
Company have the positive ability and intention to hold
to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity securities.
Held-to-maturity securities are stated in the balance
sheet at amortised cost less impairment losses (see note

1(i)).

Investments in equity interest that do not have a
guoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are recognised in the
balance sheet at cost less impairment losses (see note

1(1)).

Investments in debt securities and equity interest
which do not fall into any of the above categories
are classified as available-for-sale investment. At each
balance sheet date the fair value is remeasured, with
any resultant gain or loss being recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the fair value reserve, except foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from changes in
the amortised cost of monetary items such as debt
securities which are recognised directly in profit or loss.
Dividend income from these investments is recognised
in profit or loss in accordance with the policy set out in
note 1(o)(ix) and, where these investments are interest-
bearing, interest calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in profit or loss in accordance
with the policy set out in note 1(o)(viii). When these
investments are derecognised or impaired (see note
1(i)), the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or
they expire.

1. TEEFEER@E)
(e) HMBEHEESRRERE (8)

RIEEBENBEBESMRERENES
MBEE - ETMNHEBISZKAIRNEL
HREBRGHER ASEeESHEEER
ENMAELABE ALELENEMEK
SAEERONERER ERETER
M EERFRL TERRELRE
A EMRE RAE - BARERAM
BIZ BRI EE 1(0)(ix) K (viii) BT 80 ) B

X7
o

AEER/FIARNFTERAENEIRE
BREAEIPNEHERES Dol
AEERIHES RBEZRIMESFK
BEXAREREBEREERERS
RORMEEG))

EERTISMERD A EETHET R
B 00 ER A AR 2R AR B
ERERNER(IIFE)) -

DB L (T ] 28 Bl B9 {8 75 38 75 M A
RENDER/RAHLERE - AKEER
BEEEREHNAEAAEE  ALE
EREAREREBRENE 2 E KRS
NER TRESZFNRAEBEHRED
MR ERE®EBRB(WEBESF)W
R AN ) A A R IME Weas fe B 1B
HEREDRTER RFRENBER
AIRIRHEEE 1(0)(ix) TR R A R 2
R MMZERESTE  RIAERF
FORFTE RN B & R EE 1 (o) (viii) AT
HHBRREBSTER - R LERZ
EREFKERE(RME10)E - REf
Bk EiEeREREN N BERLS

AEBERAEBA HERERKRET
HERWERILERAEHERE
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Il NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREERERN  GIRBEE)

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

(9)

Fixed assets and depreciation
Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(i)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of fixed assets are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of fixed assets, less their estimated residual value, if
any, using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

Audio and visual equipment 5 — 7 years
Billboards Over the remaining

lease term
Furniture and fixtures 7 years
Hardware and software 5 years
Leasehold improvements Over the remaining

lease term
Motor vehicles 5 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Programming library

(i) Programming library consists of commissioned
programming and contracted programming cost
in respect of programming rights of presentation.
Expenditure on commissioned and contracted
programmes is amortised to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the licence period.

(i) Cost of programmes produced in-house is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it
is incurred.

1. TESHBXRE)
(f) BEEEERITE

Bl E & E VIR AR Rt I & LR E B
BORMEG0))IIE -

BEEERRERBEAHERMELD
BE NLEMBFEFEAZEAMN
FHEZHENERAET  YRREXD
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1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Accounts receivable and other receivables

(i)

Accounts receivable and other receivables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see
note 1(i)), except where the receivables are interest-
free loans made to related parties without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at
cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts
(see note 1(i)).

Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of investments in available-for-
sale debt securities and equity interest and
receivables
Investments in available-for-sale debt securities
and equity interest and current and non-current
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost
or are classified as available-for-sale securities are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about one or more of the following loss
events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument
below its cost.

TEEHBRERG@E)
(h) FE W BR 1 B HL 4t B U BR 3K

(i)

WS BR TR  EL Ah E UBR R A  IA B R R
KRB ARBEER  HRREHEKAX
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fis) J& U B 5% A% (R A PR A N R U 3 4
EEFRPNEEERIMRTELTE
R Bl FE WRR SR  1R BK AN R R R OR (B B
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(i) TRHEERBEZESFRREREREK
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A EEKE S RRERE RIEK
AHBHEKATN RO RE MRS FE
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Il NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREERERN  GIRBEE)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in available-for-
sale debt securities and equity interest and
receivables (continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

— For investments in subsidiaries, the impairment
loss is measured by comparing the recoverable
amount of the investment with its carrying
amount in accordance with note 1(i)(ii). The
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount in
accordance with note 1(i)ii).

— For unquoted equity interest carried at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
asset and the estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset where the effect
of discounting is material. Impairment loss for
equity interest carried at cost is not reversed.

— For trade and other receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively
where these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar to
the collective group.
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1. TEEFBERGE)

(i) EEREE)
(i) TRAEERBEEFRKERERENR

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of investments in available-for-

sale debt securities and equity interest and

receivables (continued)

— If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the assets’ carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.

— For available-for-sale debt securities, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised
directly in the fair value reserve is reclassified
to profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative
loss that is recognised in profit or loss is the
difference between the acquisition cost (net
of any principal repayment and amortisation)
and current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that asset previously recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses in respect of available-
for-sale debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised. Reversals
of impairment losses in such circumstances are
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors
and bills receivable included within accounts
receivable, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment
losses for doubtful debts are recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group is satisfied
that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade debtors
and bills receivable directly and any amounts held
in the allowance account relating to that debt
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly
are recognised in profit or loss.
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Il NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(REEETIN  GRBEHE)

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i)

Impairment of assets (continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that fixed assets may be impaired or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer

exists or may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable

amount is estimated.

— Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e.
a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of the assets in the unit (or group
of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs to sell,
or value in use, if determinable.
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1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i)

()

Impairment of assets (continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)
— Reversals of impairment losses
An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period, the Group
applies the same impairment testing, recognition,
and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year (see notes 1(i)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of unquoted equity interest carried at
cost are not reversed in a subsequent period. This
is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would
have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates.

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out costing
method and comprises all costs of purchase and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.
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Il NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREERERN  GIRBEE)

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

(k)

V)

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.

Accounts payable and other payables

Accounts payable and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liguid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.

(m) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.
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1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the
reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in
periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or
credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.
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BRI

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREERERN  GIRBEE)

TEEHBRERG@E)
(m) Fr&# (8)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Income tax (continued)

RoadShow Holdings Limited E Annual Report 2012

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit
to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group or the
Company has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Group or the Company intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(n)

(o)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss
as follows:

(i) Income from multi-media sales is recognised
when the related advertisements are telecast or
commercials appear before the public. Revenue is
stated net of agency commission and rebate.

(i) Income from bus interiors and bus exterior
advertising is recognised when the related
advertisements appear before the public. Revenue
is stated net of agency commission and rebate.

(iii) Media sales income from advertising on transit
vehicle shelters is recognised when the related
advertisements appear before the public. Revenue
is stated net of agency commission and rebate.
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Il NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREERERN  GIRBEE)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(o) Revenue recognition (continued)

(p)

(iv) Fee income from media sales management and
administrative services is recognised when the
related services are rendered.

(v) Fee income from production of advertisements is
recognised when the related services are rendered.

(vi) Income from advertising agency services is
recognised when the related services are rendered.

(vii) Revenue from sale of merchandise is recognised
when the merchandise is delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point
in time when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of the merchandise have been
transferred to the customers. Revenue is stated net
of trade discounts.

(viii) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(ix) Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment is established.

Leased assets and operating leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases.
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1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(p)

(a)

(r)

Leased assets and operating leases (continued)
Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased assets.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made.

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Translation of foreign currencies

The functional currency of the Company and
subsidiaries which operate in Hong Kong is Hong Kong
dollar while that for subsidiaries which operate in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC") is Renminbi. The
presentation currency of the Company is Hong Kong
dollar.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.
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BRI

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREERERN  GIRBEE)

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r)

(s)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are
translated into Hong Kong dollar at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Balance sheet items
are translated into Hong Kong dollar at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong,
the cumulative amount of the exchange differences
recognised in equity which relate to that operation
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Related parties
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same Group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a Group of which the
other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s) Related parties (continued)

(t)

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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Segment reporting

The Group manages its business by geographical areas. In
a manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has identified the
following two reportable segments.

Provision of media sales and
management services

Hong Kong:

Mainland China: Provision of media advertising agency
services and design and production of

advertisements

There are no sales between the reportable segments.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s
most senior executive management monitors the results
attributable to each reportable segment on the following
bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation of assets
attributable to those segments.

Segment assets and liabilities include all current and non-
current assets and liabilities, respectively, which are directly
managed by the segments.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments for
the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 is set out
below.
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2. Segment reporting (continued) 2. IS (H)

(a) Reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and (a) 2o WA~ BFskEE EERE
liabilities: f&
Hong Kong Mainland China Total
5B HE AR Foh
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Tr Fr Tr Fr Tr
Revenue from external RENBEFH
customers O 416,971 370,556 4,183 935 421,154 371,491
Other revenue and other HitW AR 2 thlizz/
net income/(loss) (BE)FE 8,755 9,724 14 (138) 8,769 9,586
Reportable segment revenue  2HFHHA 425,726 380,280 4,197 797 429,923 381,077
Reportable segment profit/(loss) 22 HBF /(FE) 97,690 82,308 91 (113,531) 97,781 (31,223)
Depreciation for the year AEEHE (10,192) (9,279) (48) (165)  (10,240) (9,444)
Impairment loss on other non-  HtiFREEBEERE
current financial assets BE - - —  (109,606) —  (109,606)
Reportable segment assets ERABEE 518,464 520,434 164,341 163,426 682,805 683,860
Additions to non-current FRERBIDEEMN
segment assets during the year FE 8,770 33,490 - 20 8,770 33,510
Reportable segment liabilities EZHAIHBEE 110,182 123,824 187 520 110,369 124,344
(b) The Group's reportable segment liabilities are equal (b) $EIE’] ERNPBEABEERGEEE
to consolidated total liabilities. Reconciliations of B o DEWA - BFKEERE
reportable segment revenue, profit or loss and assets E;\TEEZZD—F :
are as follows:
2012 2011
$'000 $'000
T F
Revenue A
Reportable segment revenue EX 51 ON 429,923 381,077
Unallocated other revenue and RoBEMBAR
other net income Hith 2 F 58 13,250 16,251
Consolidated total operating revenue REKE W ALE 443,173 397,328
Profit or loss Eﬂjﬁﬂé
Reportable segment profit/(loss) R BER(FE) 97,781 (31,223)
Unallocated other revenue and 5EJJ EEE MU A R
other net income Hith 22 75 58 13,250 16,251
Unallocated head office and RPMERSER
corporate expenses EXH (14,541) (15,909)
Consolidated profit/(loss) before taxation S&BRBAZER (EiB) 96,490 (30,881)
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets ERPMWEE 682,805 683,860
Other non-current financial assets HivERBemEE 81,296 80,872
Unallocated head office and RKOMAENRNSER
corporate assets TrEEE 2,382 1,342
Consolidated total assets AR EERS 766,483 766,074
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3. Turnover

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of media
sales and management and administrative services for
Multi-media On-board (“MMOB"” or “BUS-TV"), transit
vehicle exteriors and interiors advertising businesses and
the operation of media advertising management services
through marketing advertising spaces on transit vehicle
exteriors, interiors, shelters and outdoor signages and the
provision of advertising agency services.

Turnover represents income from media sales and
management and administrative services and advertising
agency services, net of agency commission and rebate.

AEBTENZARDLRB([RBSHKE]
IELERDER FEEHEFIPRE
FANESEXGRHEKBHEE EERTR
% WRERBEHTEEREHIA - B
FAR REFRFPINESHENESML - &
ERBESEERYE  URRHEESKER
7% o

EREEARREME MENEK  REEE
HE  BEERTBRYE  URESKERS
HIUA -

4. Other revenue and other net income HW AR H At 22758
2012 2011
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Other revenue Ha g A
Interest income from listed available-for-sale B Em A HEBHESHN
debt securities FEUW A 3,147 3,205
Other interest income HF 2 WA 8,738 6,610
Interest income from financial assets not at RENFBEBEZRANEER
fair value through profit or loss PERM S REEMNFI WA 11,885 9,815
Sales of merchandise EmEE 9,816 9,772
Sundry revenue HAob WA 29 63
21,730 19,650
Other net income H i W5 F 5
Exchange gain IE X I & 1,350 6,292
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEREEERE (1,061) (105)
289 6,187
22,019 25,837

5.

Impairment loss on other non-current
financial assets

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group
requested AdSociety Daye Advertising Company Limited
(the “investee”) to repay the loans totalling $70,154,000
due to the Group upon expiry. However, the investee had
defaulted on the agreed repayment schedule. In addition,
the Group had undertaken various discussions with the
investee to restructure the investment in and loans to the
investee, but the Group had not been able to obtain a
viable proposal from the investee. Accordingly, additional
impairment losses of $109,606,000 were made against the
Group's investment in, loans to and amount due from the
investee during the year ended 31 December 2011. The
Group had taken legal action to recover the outstanding
balances. Up to the date of these financial statements, no
settlement has been made and the loans are overdue for
more than one year.
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6. Profit/(loss) before taxation

7.

Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging:

6.

BRBATAR, (BR)
RBLAT R (1R B Mk :

2012 2011
$'000 $000
Fr T
Auditor’s remuneration Z 2 BN & 2,263 2,361
Contributions to defined contribution ERRHFCGRRET B
retirement schemes HER 1,566 1,161
Depreciation e 10,784 9,699
Impairment loss on other non-current financial EttIERBEREERE
assets BB — 109,606
Operating lease charges KRERELR N
— land and buildings — T RETF 3,435 2,463
— audio and visual equipment — ERE 5,465 5,453
Income tax in the consolidated income 7. SIRGREBRRVEBH
statement
(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement (a) FIRGEEERNHIES :
represents:
2012 2011
$'000 $'000
Fr S
Current tax REABLIE
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax AEEEFBFNEH
for the current year BiE 16,373 11,745
(Over)/under-provision in respect of prior BEEE(BLE) T2
years B (58) 100
16,315 11,845
Provision for PRC income tax REIFTEBRE 162 =
16,477 11,845
Deferred tax EEHIE
Reversal and origination of temporary T EEWRER
differences 7 514 1,018
Income tax expense 8Bk 16,991 12,863

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year is
calculated at 16.5% (2011: 16.5%) of the estimated
assessable profits for the year. Taxation for subsidiaries
in the PRC is charged at the appropriate current rates

of taxation ruling in the PRC.

AEEHEBNEHRBEDNEBRAFEE
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7. Income tax in the consolidated income 7. IIRGEEERNAEHR (&)
statement (continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) REAREFENH ERIHEHEFTER
accounting profit/(loss) at applicable tax rates: (B WYE :
2012 2011
$'000 $'000
F Fr
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREAEF, (FE) 96,490 (30,881)
Notional tax on profit/(loss) before RBRBARF(BE)RZ
taxation, calculated at the rates BRABKE A EZERE A
applicable to profits in the tax BEFTENERBIE
jurisdictions 16,003 (5,063)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR IESE 275 18,133
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BEFHBRANTIEZE (1,394) (1,815)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERBEEBENRESE 1,850 1,608
(Over)/under-provision in prior years BEFE(BEHE),/
TREHE (58) 100
Others HAth 315 (100)
Actual tax expense ERHIERX 16,991 12,863
8. Directors’ remuneration 8. EEM<&
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 1{&9“‘%{',%({ BEBIYE 161 16§ K& E TR Al 3R
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Listing CEEMEeBENT

Rules is as follows:

2012
Salaries, Retirement
Directors’ allowances  Discretionary scheme
fees  and benefits bonuses  contributions Total
e 28 BiRaE
L EEE REM B f 3t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i r i r i
Executive Director HITES
Mr Alex MO Tik Sang ERELE 110 1,776 1,739 14 3,639
Non-Executive Directors F4nES
Dr John CHAN Cho Chak RiEEEL 154 - - - 154
Ms Winnie NG mE® LT 176 - - - 176
Mr YUNG Wing Chung AXALE 218 - - - 218
Mr MAK Chun Keung BRALE 110 - - - 110
Mr John Anthony MILLER BERLE 110 - - - 110
Mr Edmond HO Tat Man WEEE 110 - - - 110
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUFHTES
Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI HREREL 209 - - - 209
Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung SEEBEL 202 - - - 202
Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung RECRHR 213 - - - 213
Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung GEPEL 1 _ _ _ 1
1,613 1,776 1,739 14 5,142




8. Directors’ remuneration (continued)

9.

8. EXM< (&)

2011
Salaries, Retirement
Directors'  allowances and Discretionary scheme
fees benefits bonuses  contributions Total
e 2H RIRGHE
BEHS RER Bt 3 a3t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
r T T T T
Executive Director HTES
Mr Alex MO Tik Sang EHELE 90 1,606 1,488 12 3,196
Non-Executive Directors FUTES
Dr John CHAN Cho Chak REEEL 126 - - - 126
Ms Winnie NG mE® LT 150 - - — 150
Mr YUNG Wing Chung ARBEE 178 = = = 178
Mr MAK Chun Keung RiRaEE 90 — — - 90
Mr John Anthony MILLER HERLE 90 - - = 90
Mr Edmond HO Tat Man WENEE 90 - - - 90
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUkYTES
Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI REREL 170 — — = 170
Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung EX 8k 174 = = = 174
Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung RERHR 170 = = = 170
1,328 1,606 1,488 12 4,434

Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one
(2011: one) is a Director whose emoluments are disclosed in
note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the
other four (2011: four) individuals are as follows:

9. REME AL
AEBEMEATHEE—R(ZE——F

—R)EF ZEFH
ME(ZF——%F: HR)R=MH

TRBEHIIMT

SR HE - Hip

& A T H) B

2012 2011
$'000 $000
Fr Fr
Salaries, allowances and other benefits e RHRHAMEF 5,412 5,021
Retirement scheme contributions RIREHEIH R 55 48
5,467 5,069

The emoluments of the four (2011: four) individuals with ZNME(—E——F : U )H5Me A TH

the highest emoluments are within the following band:

)

B

ranw

Number of individuals

A

2012

2011

$1,000,001 — $1,500,000

1,000,001 7t - 1,500,000 T

4
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10. Profit/(loss) attributable to equity 10. XA RREMER(EE)
shareholders of the Company
The consolidated profit/(loss) attributable to equity AABIBREELEGEAREN(BE)BE—
shareholders of the Company includes a loss of $3,415,000 £ 5#3,415000 tWEBEEB(ZT——F:
(2011: $131,797,000) which has been dealt with in the 131,797,0007) * WEEE R AR AR
financial statements of the Company. WEANELEE -

11.Dividends 1.8 E
(a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (a) REEENAATRENRES :

Company attributable to the year:

2012 2011
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Final dividend proposed after the balance R&EEBAEZDIRATRKRE
sheet date of 7.50 cents per share BR7.501(Z2——5F:
(2011: 6.11 cents per share) F8R6.1110L) 74,802 60,939
The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet REERREZD KM RARKRSLRRE
date has not been recognised as a liability at the HEBERBAE -
balance sheet date.
(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (b) ERFABEREEN LFERNAR
Company attributable to the previous year, approved AR E :
and paid during the year:
2012 2011
$'000 $000
Fr Fr
Final dividend in respect of the previous ERERHAERIREMN E—B1K
financial year, approved and paid during FERHRESRK 6.111L
the year, of 6.11 cents per share (2011: (ZZF——%F : 2)84.851L)
~ 4.85 cents per share) 60,939 48,372
g 12.Earnings/(loss) per share 12.8RER(FE)
% (a) Basic earnings/(loss) per share (a) BRELXRF (FA)
= The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is BREAERN(BEBR)EREARAE
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity BARARR EE & 774,817,000 (=&
E shareholders of the Company of $74,817,000 (2011: —— % : §51848,637,0000) M ERE
- loss of $48,637,000) and the weighted average of BT E R A h#E 19 20997,365,332
2 997,365,332 ordinary shares (2011: 997,365,332 (==& — — 4 :997,365,332 )k & &
3 ordinary shares) in issue during the year. BIFHE
§ (b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (b) SREBERF (FE)
2 There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares BHE-_ZT-——_FR=-FT——F+=A
2 outstanding during the years ended 31 December 2012 ST BLEFEITEAERESTYEN
e and 2011. BEEITEAK -



13.Fixed assets

13.BEEE

The Group
AEE
Audio Hardware
and visual and Furniture Leasehold Motor
equipment software and fixtures  improvements vehicles Total
FERE BRREM BRARRE HENERE RE h
$000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i i i r r r
Cost: A&
At 1 January 2011 n=E---F-A 164,555 2,735 1,455 1,438 1,512 171,695
Exchange adjustments EiHE — 12 25 - — 37
Additions hE 65,574 714 242 - — 66,530
Disposals HeE (390) = (55) = (1,512) (1,957)
At 31 December 2011 RZE——%+ZA=1+-H 229,739 3,461 1,667 1,438 — 236,305
Accumulated depreciation ZAMERRERFS
and impairment losses:
At 1 January 2011 R=E--%-HF-A 158,092 1,637 1,037 1,198 1,325 163,289
Exchange adjustments B — 7 23 - - 30
Charge for the year ERiTE 8,951 377 131 240 - 9,699
Written back on disposal HEREE (39) — (1) — (1,325) (1,385)
At 31 December 2011 R=ZF——%+=B=t-H 167,004 2,021 1,170 1,438 - 171,633
Net book value: RERE
At 31 December 2011 e e e = 62,735 1,440 497 - - 64,672
Audio Hardware
and visual and Furniture Leasehold
equipment software  and fixtures improvements Billboards Total
YERE BRREH BRREE HENEZRE BER @zt
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000
i i R i i R
Cost: A
At 1 January 2012 R-Z--%-A-H 229,739 3,461 1,667 1,438 - 236,305
Exchange adjustments ERHRE - 2 5 - - 7
Additions nE 700 1,526 657 313 3,500 6,696
Disposals HE (95,028) - - - - (95,028)
At 31 December 2012 R=B-Z—f+ZA=t-H  1354M 4,989 2,329 1,751 3,500 147,980
Accumulated depreciation RN FERBELSE:
and impairment losses:
At 1 January 2012 W=E--%-A-H 167,004 2,021 1,170 1,438 - 171,633
Exchange adjustments EHAZ - 2 5 - - 7
Charge for the year ERE 9,684 598 154 251 97 10,784
Written back on disposal HEREE (83,566) - - - - (83,566)
At 31 December 2012 e 93,122 2,621 1,329 1,689 97 98,858
Net book value: IR FE
At 31 December 2012 R=B-—&+=A=t-H 42,289 2,368 1,000 62 3,403 49,122

# E M4y 710¢
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14.Non-current and current prepayments 14.(RBEREBEAKE
Non-current prepayments comprise deposits for purchase ERHENREEEBREETEENKRS -
of fixed assets. At 31 December 2011, current prepayments R-ZZE——F+_A=1+—H8 " "RHEMZK
consist of advance payments for concession and rights for HEEE-_ZE -2 - —_FHEREE
advertising and media programme placement on transit BHERREABNENES RIERD B BN
vehicles and transit network furniture for periods from 2002 EWTEMNR - 25 AV E R HIERE -

to 2012. The amounts are neither past due nor impaired.

15.Investments in subsidiaries 15. B ARIKRE
The Company
NN
2012 2011
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Unlisted shares, at cost FEMRS  RE 62,835 62,835
The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries. TREFYHBRARNER - B2 HIERI
The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. Frig A% (o f8 515 A& @Ak o
All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under FrENE AR AN 1(d) i E &K <L
note 1(d) and have been consolidated into the Group’s B AR EXELIHARNEBTERERN
financial statements. mEeEtE -
Particulars of issued Attributable equity
Place of and paid interest (%)
incorporation/ up capital BERR(EDT)
Name of company operation ERTRESR direct indirect Principal activity
ARER AR EEH Y RAFE H#E & FTEEK
AdSociety Advertising Hong Kong $2 — 100 Investment holding
Agency Limited E# 27 REER
AEBEHEEERAH
Bus Focus Limited The British Virgin Us$100 — 60 Provision of media sales service
Islands/Hong Kong 100 T for advertising on transit vehicle
KBRZEE /BB shelters
RURESHREEZESEN
REHERE
Bus Power Limited Hong Kong $1 — 100 Provision of media sales service
5# 17T for advertising on transit vehicle
exteriors
REZESHESHHESH
REBSHE RS
Cyberstop Limited The British Virgin US$1 — 100 Holder of the registered design
Islands/Hong Kong 157% and patent in relation to cyber
KERLHE /BB bus stops

BFEEBHBE LN
REF



15.Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of issued

15. B A RRE (&)

Attributable equity
interest (%)

Place of and paid
incorporation/ up capital BERR(EDT)
Name of company operation ERTREAR direct indirect Principal activity
AREHE AR % ik 2 BRAFE =k & TEER
KM-Vision Limited Hong Kong $10,000 — 100 Dormant
BB 10,0007 Emex
Leader Force Limited Hong Kong $1 — 100 Provision of media sales
E# 17T service for advertising on
billboards
RUEEERESNEREERS
LW-Vision Limited Hong Kong $10,000 — 100 Dormant
&8 10,000 7T THEEx
MB-Vision Limited Hong Kong $2 = 100 Dormant
Bi# 27 Tmex
Road Publications Limited Hong Kong $2 — 100 Trading of bus souvenirs
BB 27T LEBTESRHEEB
RoadShow Advertising The PRC US$500,000 — 100 Provision of media advertising
(Beijing) Company Limited 500,000 =T agency service and design and
(limited liability company) production of advertisements
BABEE(LR)ERAF RUBREEAERER
(ERERART) EEREEEME
RoadShow Creations Limited Hong Kong $2 — 100 Trading of bus souvenirs
EE 27 KeBtRmHEES
RoadShow Media The British Virgin US$1 — 100 Investment holding
Holdings Limited Islands/Hong Kong 127 REER
RERLHE/ B
RoadShow Media Limited Hong Kong $2 — 100 Provision of media sales &
s 27T management services for
advertising on transit vehicle
interiors and for BUS-TV
business
RURESHERAT
BEURELERERH
REEEREERS
RoadShow Productions The British Virgin Us$1 — 100 Investment holding
Holdings Limited Islands/Hong Kong ES REER

RERLHE/BE

# E M4 7102
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15.Investments in subsidiaries (continued) 15.MBLARIRE (&)
Particulars of issued Attributable equity
Place of and paid interest (%)
incorporation/ up capital BERR(EDL)
Name of company operation ERTREAR direct indirect Principal activity
DA EHE TS, % i 2 RAFE =E: A TEER
RoadShow Productions Limited Hong Kong $2 — 100 Events production and
E# 27T production of content for
BUS-TV systems
HHEFREECLER
ZERE
RoadShow Resources Limited  The British Virgin Us$1 100 — Investment holding
Islands/Hong Kong (EF REER
RERZHEE /B
RoadVision Holdings The British Virgin Us$1 — 100 Investment holding
(China) Limited Islands/Hong Kong 1258 REZER
RERLHES /BB
RoadVision Holdings Limited The British Virgin Us$2 — 100 Investment holding
Islands/Hong Kong 2ER REER
RERLHE/ BB
RoadVision (Beijing) Limited The British Virgin US$1 — 100 Investment holding
Islands/Hong Kong (= RELZR
RERLHES /BB
RoadVision (Shanghai) Limited  The British Virgin Us$1 — 100 Investment holding
Islands/Hong Kong E REER
REELHEE/ BB
RSG Resources Limited Hong Kong $2 — 100 Provision of employment
EA 27 agency services
REEE N RS
SB-Vision Limited Hong Kong $10,000 — 95 Dormant
BB 10,000 7T gEex
Silver Sea Limited Hong Kong $1 — 100 Provision of media sales
BB 17 service for online
advertising
RUALBEENRBRHEERYE
Beijing Ding Yi Tang Artiste The PRC RMB500,000 — 100 Provision of artiste agency
Management Co., Ltd. HE AE#500,000 ¢ service
(limited liability company RESEALE AR

(wholly-owned by legal

person))
TRREEEERLERAH

(BREELRCEABE))



16.0ther non-current financial assets

16. HthERBEMEE

The Group
rEE

2012 2011
$’000 $'000
Fr T

Available-for-sale debt securities, at fair value &2 R EEFIRNAHEHEEBR
(listed outside Hong Kong) HHE(BBEIMNET) 81,296 80,872

Unlisted available-for-sale equity interest, at R ANFIREEE 5 RH

cost less impairment losses LAt ERE — —
Loans to investee WIRELDNRER — =
Amount due from investee R IRE N RFIE —_ =
81,296 80,872

(b)

(a) Available-for-sale debt securities, at fair value

The listed debt securities are issued by corporate
entities with credit ratings ranging from BBB+ to AA+.

The available-for-sale debt securities are due for
repayment in 2014 or 2015.

Unlisted available-for-sale equity interest, at cost
less impairment losses

At 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group's
investment in an unlisted investee was classified as
available-for-sale equity interest as the Group does not
have significant influence over the investee.

At 31 December 2012 and 2011, the available-for-
sale equity interest was determined to be impaired (see
note 5). Impairment losses on unlisted available-for-sale
equity interest of $143,371,000 have been recognised
as at 31 December 2012 and 2011.

(c) Loans to investee

At 31 December 2012 and 2011, loans to investee
of $70,154,000 were individually determined to be
impaired and impairment losses of $70,154,000 have
been made (see note 5).

(d) Amount due from investee

At 31 December 2012 and 2011, amount due from
investee of $15,882,000 was determined to be impaired
and impairment losses of $15,882,000 have been made
(see note 5).

(a) BAABEIRNATHEEREE S

(b)

(c)

T ERBSHEEFRN TBBB+E
AA+ B EE LB 1T -

AfEEERESFER -
T-RFFHEER -

—mExR=

BRAEBEBRESROIE LD A HH
ERE

AR AEERKREARLEERNTE
H RZB-——FR-_Z——F+-H
=t—B AEERFLTHREREAQT
MR B W 0 B A (B AR

R—E——E&ER-_FT——%+=A1
=+—H AHEEREHRETARE
(RKisEs) R-B——FR-_T——F
+—-B=+—H  2%##143,371,000
TRFELETmAEEERENRERSSE -

WREQNTER
%:;*_¢&_7* F+ =
A=+ —H #FHKEQIH

7QB¢%0%§$W“%%¢%M%M
- WEEH 70,154,000 T HI B EEE
(RF3zES) o

(d) EHRWEREDFTRE

R—ZE——FEF-_Z——%F+=A
=+—H - 15,882,000 7T & JE W 1 38 &
NAIFBRETABTRE  LEEH
15,882,000 TAREEBE (RHEES) °

e
(=)
w
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17.Inventories

All of the inventories are finished goods of merchandise.

The amount of inventories recognised as an expense is as
follows:

17. 28
FMEFEEHAH MK °

R

BRHNBESENT :

The Group
KEE

2012 2011

$'000 $'000

Fr Fr

Carrying amount of inventories sold EHEFEREE 6,685 6,498
Write-down of inventories FEMR — 19
Reversal of write-down of inventories FEMRRE (110) =
6,575 6,517

18. Amounts due from/(to) group companies

(a)

The amount due from ultimate holding company
is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms
of repayment. The amount is neither past due nor
impaired.

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed terms of repayment, except for
amounts due to certain subsidiaries of $133,159,000
(2011: $72,493,000), which have no fixed terms of
repayment but are not expected to be repaid within
twelve months of the balance sheet date.

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment but
are not expected to be repaid within twelve months of
the balance sheet date. The amounts are neither past
due nor impaired.

At 31 December 2012 and 2011, amounts due from
certain subsidiaries of $126,669,000 were determined
to be impaired and impairment losses of $126,669,000
were made.

The amounts due from/(to) fellow subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest-free, repayable on demand and
represent normal trade receivables and payables. The
amounts due from fellow subsidiaries are neither past
due nor impaired.

18. &l (FEH) RE R R FRIE

(a)

(d)

RUERERARRARELR 28
KB & TR o % XA N M 8 HA SO
8 e

B FEfH A T H B A RIA 133,159,000 7T

~~ T

— T — — 4 :72,493,000 T ) I & &
TE B E ﬁTﬁ%M%ZB&+ 12
AAEEIN - BB AR RIEAER

2R REETEENY -

EWW%“ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ 28N E
EERH HEIARHRGEER+ @
HWE%°§: RIR N B B OB (E -

m

= *‘i& Tff¢+ A
=St+-—B BERETHEBE RN
1%ﬁ@0%mﬁ%m%ﬁﬁvﬁaﬁ
H 126,669,000 TLHIREEIE o

FEUR,(FEAT) R XM B QA Al 7k 1B A &K
B8 BAREXREEE Kk —

RESEERENER - ZFREKRFFR
Fi /B8 X B ) SR Y A B SOR(E -



19. Accounts receivable

Details of the ageing analysis of accounts receivable that
is neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired at the balance sheet date are as follows:

19. EWBR &

RAEEH - I8 IR E RSB 2R E M E IR

BRI REDOMEBLT

The Group
AEE

2012 2011
$'000 $000
T T
Neither past due nor impaired jtﬂﬁﬁﬁjiﬁﬁ 51,409 48,239
Less than one month past due BN —1EA 17,005 18,809
One to two months past due @Eﬁ—:zémﬂﬁﬂ 10,834 10,872
Two to three months past due BHRZE={EA 31,451 33,106
More than three months past due BB B=EA 6,868 6,226
117,567 117,252

According to the Group’s credit policy, credit period granted
to customers is generally within 90 days. Therefore, all the
balances which are not past due as disclosed above are
within three months from the invoice date.

All of the accounts receivable are expected to be recovered
within one year.

Impairment loss is written off against accounts receivable
when the recovery of the amount is remote. At 31
December 2012 and 2011, none of the Group’s accounts
receivable was individually determined to be impaired.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

The Group’s credit policy is set out in note 25(a) to the
financial statements.

REAKSENEERR  —RETEPHNE
EHR90R - At A EXAEENRE

HERONBEZARE=EARNDEY -

FEHM A RRRS SR —FAkE -

EA MBS ERETA - AR R 8
e
=+ R AR E R R B

mﬁmﬁﬂﬁ

b 8 B SR B A R R IR Y R 2 B iR I

BHRCHNEPEH -

ERERRENERREDEETRAE
l%ﬁi%ﬁﬁﬁﬁMﬁ BEEH - BIE
BELR EEEBEHEGEHARZESE
E%I*mﬁiﬁ&%' A

REA2EEE  RBBERZETEE

mh ©

HOEE
BRI
R E
B AEEY RFBEXFHEHIEMAEMA

AEBNEEBRINITBEIRRME 25(a) °

_
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20.Pledged bank deposits

Pursuant to certain licence agreements between subsidiaries
of the Company and certain fellow subsidiaries, the
subsidiaries have provided bank guarantees in favour of
the fellow subsidiaries regarding the subsidiaries’ due
performance and payment under the respective licence
agreements. The Company has pledged bank deposits of
$60,200,000 (2011: $41,200,000) to banks for the bank
guarantees issued.

21.Bank deposits and cash

20.B AR ITER

BREARAKBAGES THERHBRAET
VYWETHTERZ HBRARDREZS
BORIAREEEEHERZTHNETLR
RE EEUZERRNBRAR AT EAN
IRITHER - NARIFEATE T MBRITERMR
174K # 4R 717 17 5 60,200,000 (= & — —
% :41,200,0007T) °

1. BT ERRES

The Group The Company
REH RAT
2012 2011 2012 2011
$’000 $000 $'000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Cash at bank and in hand RITFEAREES 102,360 106,673 3,756 1,486
Bank deposits with original REHAE A
maturities within three =@ B R
months RITER 49,760 49,360 — —
Cash and cash equivalents RERBSRER
for the purpose of cash MENRER
flow statement REeZEY 152,120 156,033
Bank deposits with original REHAE A
maturities over three BB=@EAMN
months RITER 257,671 272,038 158,151 173,319
409,791 428,071 161,907 174,805

22.Accounts payable

Details of the ageing analysis of accounts payable at the
balance sheet date are as follows:

22. BEERRX
REER - BREXNERSNEENT

The Group
AEH
2012 2011
$'000 $000
Fr T
Due within one month —18A A ZEIHA 2,276 4,370

Credit period granted to the Group by suppliers is generally
within 90 days. Therefore, all the balances which are due
within one month above are within three months from the
invoice date.

All of the accounts payable are expected to be settled
within one year.

HEF - RETAEENEEH/0H
M A LR — B A A A SRS
SHHR=EARIHE -

s TF

HHIF A BN RN —F R -



23.Income tax in the consolidated balance sheet 23.3|RGAEEEBRVTEHE

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated balance sheet (a) IIRMEEEEBRNAHHRES !
represents:
The Group
rEH
2012 2011
$'000 $'000
Fr F
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the ZARNEEFBFEH
year s 16,373 11,745
Provisional Profits Tax paid EEHAEH (11,734) (9,419)
4,639 2,326
PRC income tax payable BN EAEH 329 260
4,968 2,586
Reconciliation to consolidated balance sheet: RESEEEBEXRYE :
The Group
rEH
2012 2011
$'000 $'000
T T
Current tax recoverable recognised in the NECEEEBREIAN
consolidated balance sheet JE Uk A< ER 5 18 (3,491) (215)
Current tax payable recognised in the REEEEEBRERN
consolidated balance sheet FE{S A HR 18 8,459 2,801
4,968 2,586

e
(=)
~N

HE4710¢

£
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BIRGEEERBERNAEH (&)

23.Income tax in the consolidated balance sheet
(continued)

(b) ERRBELHEEE (BE) :
FEEERBBRACHANELHEE
E/(BE)OEKRIDNRNFRENE

(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised:
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the

RoadShow Holdings Limited E Annual Report 2012

movements during the year are as follows: LU
The Group
A&H

Depreciation

allowances in

excess of

related
depreciation Tax losses Total

BEHERTE
MiTEES REER @t
$'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tr Tr
At 1 January 2011 R=Z2--%-5-H (728) 4,709 3,981
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss EEHA(GIX) /FTA (5,990) 4,972 (1,018)
Exchange adjustments B — 16 16
At 31 December 2011 R=Z--%#+=A=+t-H (6,718) 9,697 2,979
At 1 January 2012 R-Z--5—-A—H (6,718) 9,697 2,979
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss REFAFTA/ (FX%) 705 (1,219) (514)
Exchange adjustments EHAR - 4) (4)
At 31 December 2012 RZE-—Z—&+-B=1—-H (6,013) 8,474 2,461

Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet: RELbBEABERANSRE -
The Group
AEE

2012 2011
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Net deferred tax assets EEBIEEEFH 2,618 3,060
Net deferred tax liabilities EEBIEEEFHE (157) (81)
2,461 2,979




23.Income tax in the consolidated balance sheet
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Deferred tax assets not recognised:

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 1(m), the Group and the Company have not
recognised deferred tax assets of $14,059,000 (2011:
$12,209,000) and $11,125,000 (2011: $9,894,000) in
respect of cumulative tax losses of $85,027,000 (2011:
$73,836,000) and $67,422,000 (2011: $59,963,000),
respectively, as it is not probable that future taxable
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The
tax losses do not expire under the current tax legislation
except for an amount of the Group of $349,000 (2011:
$308,000) which will expire in the coming five years.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 December 2012, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of a subsidiary amounted
to $3,010,000 (2011: $1,878,000). Deferred tax
liabilities of $301,000 (2011: $188,000) have not been
recognised in respect of the tax that would be payable
on the distribution of these retained profits as the
Company controls the dividend policy of this subsidiary
and it has been determined that it is probable that
profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

BIRGEEERBERNAEH (&)

() AEANELEHREE :

BREMFTIMARNSTEE A
REBHRBAZERREREBASKRT
BRI AUAEEBEENKRKER
MEHN WAKERARQGFILER
% 5185,027,0007(= & — — -
73,836,000 ) & 67,422,000L(= &
— — 4 :59,963,0007T ) B 25T H B B
B # 714,059,000 0(= & — — &
12,209,0007C ) % 11,125,000 0(= =
— — 4 :9,894,000 T ) M iE T EH &
E o BB EBIRIETH B A0 I &5
wmE o EHA349,000 (=T ——5F :
308,000 7)) iR R B FE A EH ©

(d) RERHELEHRAE :

RZEBE——F+-_A=+—H ' B@—
BHBRARAAD RBEFNERE=ZES
3,010,000 t(= & — — 4 : 1,878,000
DD WG = = NGIE:
BHBER  MZMBARENRBREK
AEeteskBF Bt tEHS
EZEREBEBARESMNHHRIERRE
EFRIIEE E301,0000 (=8 —— £
188,000 7T) °

# E M4 7102
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24.Capital and reserves 20 RARRES
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) ERSARTMONEE
The reconciliation between the opening and AEBGAEERSAKI MBI EER
closing balances of each component of the Group's EHRNERINGCERZEHE - AR
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated A EERARBHONANFEE YRS
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes RENEBFBFHFWOT :

in the Company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set

out below:
The Company
NG|
Retained
profits/
Share Share Contributed  (accumulated
capital premium surplus losses) Total
REEA/
Bx R EE B4R (RETER) @zt
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i T i r T
Balance at 1 January 2011 RZB--F-A-BM&H 99,737 531,769 62,635 7,683 701,824
Changes in equity for 2011: SE--FREESY.
Total comprehensive income for  AEE2EKE
the year am = = — (131,797) (131,797)
Dividends approved in respect BRI L EEEHEMN
of the previous year RE — — — (48,372) (48,372)
Balance at 31 December 2011 ~ R=ZF-——-%#+-A=+-AK
and 1 January 2012 “B-"E-B-AMER 99,737 531,769 62,635 (172,486) 521,655
Changes in equity for 2012: “E-CEEREE:
Total comprehensive income for AEE2E K
the year am - - - (3.415) (3.415)
Dividends approved in respect BRI L EEEHEMN
of the previous year RE - - (60,939) - (60,939)
Balance at 31 December 2012~ R=ZE--%+-F=1-H
s 99,737 531,769 1,696 (175,901) 451,301




24.Capital and reserves (continued)

20, BARfFEE(E)

(b) Share capital (b) B4
2012 2011
Number Number
of shares of shares
RHEE RHEE
000 $'000 ‘000 $'000
TR T TR T
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of BiR0.1TH
$0.1 each EER 10,000,000 1,000,000 10,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTREMR :
At 31 December R+=—B=+—H 997,365 99,737 997,365 99,737

(c)

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at general meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard
to the Company’s residual assets.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account
is governed by sections 150 and 157 of the
Company'’s Articles of Association and the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981.

General reserve

General reserve is provided by each of the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries of 10% of their net profit after
tax, based on the subsidiary’s PRC statutory
financial statements.

The general reserve can be used to set off any
accumulated losses or converted into paid-up
capital of the respective subsidiary.

U BEERARARRAE LERHA
BEOKR—F - EEERE AT
MRBEEMSHIFARSER -

EBEFBEAERRBRTEE IR K
g

(c) RBESHMHER AR
(i) BGEE
BHaBEERNOERXAXRQR AR
ERMAFEIS0RI157THKREE R E
—NN\—FE(RBRLEFRRE o

—RiAE

AEBEDENE R RHARENE
DA R BEDEE M B HRR BB
BAMA 10% BA—REEE -

(ii)

— B BN E R RETEEX
EREEAMNB RTINS MBI

# E M4 7102
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24.Capital and reserves (continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(iii) Contributed surplus

Pursuant to a group reorganisation in 2001, the
Company became the holding company of the
Group. The excess of the consolidated net assets
represented by the shares acquired over the
nominal value of the shares issued by the Company
in exchange under the reorganisation in 2001
was transferred to contributed surplus. Under the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, contributed surplus
is available for distribution to shareholders.

(iv) Other reserve

(v)

In 2007, the Group entered into an agreement with
a fellow subsidiary to acquire the remaining 8%
equity interests in a subsidiary, KM-Vision Limited
at a consideration of $1,211,000, resulting in a
premium of $605,000. The additional investment
was accounted for as an equity transaction and the
premium was recognised directly in shareholders’
equity.

Fair value reserve
The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net
change in the fair value of available-for-sale debt
securities held at the balance sheet date and is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy
set out in note 1(e).

(vi) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of operations outside Hong
Kong. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy set out in note 1(r).

28 BRARf#ES(H)
(c) EESHHERAR®G)

(i) E#&Z e
BE-ZZT— ﬁmgliiﬂ PIN/N
B A AN S B B E I A ) mﬁ%ﬁ*

BRI MERD Eﬁ$’&ﬁ?*:9§<
F-FREBAFEEIBMEITH
BhHEE ZFRKCEABHR
7o REARE-NAN—F(RER)
RE - BHBHBKATKETRR -

(iv) Rt 1#

(v)

AEER-_ZTLFE-RFREMNBERQ

A& E —IEWE A1,211,0007T
B (B YR B8 E R B B A Bl KM-Vision

Limited % #4 #) 8% R A% 4 » FTE &
& 8 5605, 00073 S EINE B T LA
BaX ik sBEEERRRER
EPTJEM‘) °

AREEFRE
RABEREBEEREE
HHEBEBBIE DA BENRTE

=R =R: o)

#=4

FE WIRBMEE 1(e) TH G TR
R -

(vi) S E f# 1
SMNE R BIRBREREUINEHIT B

BRELEWAEELZRE - ZEHE
R 1(r) FRE ) S ET R IE -



28 BRARf#ES(H)
(c) EESHHERAR®G)

24.Capital and reserves (continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(vii) Distributability of reserves (vii) 1B % B 7] 7 R 14
At 31 December 2012 and 2011, the aggregate R-_E——FR=_FE——F+=H4
amount of reserves available for distribution to =+—H - A2ERTARERFELE
shareholders of the Company was $Nil. After the HeRBAES L KERAR EFHE

balance sheet date, the Directors proposed a final
dividend of 7.50 cents per ordinary share (2011:
6.11 cents per share), amounting to $74,802,000
(2011: $60,939,000) (note 11(a)). The availability
of additional reserves for distribution of the final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012
is subject to the passing of a special resolution
approving the reduction of the share premium of
the Company (“Share Premium Reduction”) and
the transfer of the credit arising from the Share
Premium Reduction to other distributable reserves
in a special general meeting to be held on 13 May
2013. The final dividend has not been recognised
as a liability at the balance sheet date.

(d) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

At 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group did not
have any bank borrowings. The Group had bank
deposits and cash balance as at 31 December 2012
amounting to $409,791,000 (2011: $428,071,000).

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

HRERBAKRESR L BAR7.501

(jﬁ——i BRERRKRG6.111{L)

“# # 574,802,0000(= T — —
¢ : 60,939,000 ) (M E11(a)) °
BER-_Z—=Z=FRF+=H&77
MR RER RS E@RBIHEHRAR
Al f% 100 B (TR 10 % 18 Bl 1) & &
fomm“fﬁlmﬁia’];&ﬁ%%ﬁéz‘éﬁt@
DIRFEEORFRRZER®E - FA
ﬁﬁ%@ﬁ@é:g__¢+:ﬂ
=+ HALEFENRPREDRNEE
OMER - NEE R - RIS K

RRAE-
(d) ExEE
AEBEREANBRBERNDREARE
EREAEBEFELENRES  KEMEB
B8 2 i 7K S AR 4 R A E o SR AR S E (B
IRESARERANRE  #BRRR

R LR N A E A S R AR o

2 —FRZE——%+=A
— B AEBTELMIEITEE -
E’\\ T-——_F+-A=+—HH
ThERNIRE 45 A409,791,000 7T
—ZT——% :428,071,0007T) °

Er

’\%%IH%

AEBRBELEMHEEARBREAR
ARERE DERSBRERLEHRERTA
Ab{*iﬁﬂﬁ?%’fﬁf§\7k$éﬁiﬁﬁﬂ’]’§$ﬂﬁ

TRNEZRREZERETE X
IJEZ%/%EJ"’&%E’J*WKQ%{ZK ey

ﬁE&o

—_
—_
w
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25.Financial risk management and fair values

The Group is exposed to credit, liquidity, interest rate and
currency risks arising from the normal course of its business.
These risks are limited by the Group’s financial management
policies and practices described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
accounts receivable and other receivables and listed
debt securities. Impairment losses have been made in
full for loans to and amounts due from an investee
which are determined to be impaired (notes 5 and
16). Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

Investments made are normally only in liquid securities
guoted on a recognised stock exchange, except where
entered into for long term strategic purposes. Given the
high credit standing of the counterparties, management
does not expect any investment counterparty to fail
to meet its obligations, except for those on which
impairment losses have been made.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
Customers of media sales business are generally
granted credit terms of 90 days while customers of
merchandising business either pay on delivery or
are generally granted credit terms of 30 to 90 days.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

Bank deposits and cash at bank are normally placed
with licensed banks that have credit ratings equal to or
better than the Group. Given their high credit ratings,
management does not expect any licensed bank to fail
to meet its obligations.

The Group has not provided any guarantee which
would expose the Group or the Company to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from accounts
receivable are set out in note 19.

5. ERAREER AABE
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25. B BEMREERAABEE)

25.Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (b) RBEL R

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
including the raising of loans to cover expected cash
demands, subject to approval by the Company’s Board
of Directors when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s policy
is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements
in the short and longer term.

The Company also monitors closely the cash flows of its
subsidiaries. Generally, the Company’s subsidiaries are
required to obtain the Company’s approval for activities
such as investment of surplus cash, raising of loans and
settlement of suppliers’ invoices beyond certain limits.

At the balance sheet date, the Group’s and the
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities which are
required to be repaid within one year or on demand
amounted to $62,337,000 (2011: $74,527,000) and
$213,705,000 (2011: $201,138,000) respectively.

The Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities which
are not expected to be repaid within twelve months
of the balance sheet date amounted to $133,159,000
(2011: $72,493,000).

AEEETHEECEERAEEA TN
RHeEl BEREBESEFMEAHN
BeFR HESSHEBBEERNSE
THREKY  MAERSAAREFREEN
- AEENRRSTHERER
EeTE UEREAEAHVNRESH
ERETECRBBERGSENNARE
THE mREAREHNRPESTEER -

ARAMEBEVNEREMBABNRE R
B-—RME - A2AINMERRZAR
WRERHBIERE  BRERNLBHAB
BETLEROHERZERZEHNEAR
NEMLE ©

REER  AEBRAQRANIETES
BEEBEAR—FRAIRNEXEBEE)S
%5 Bl 462,337,000 (=& — — £
74,527,000 7T ) &%213,705,00070(= &
——% :201,138,0007C) °

RARNFTESREE(FEHTIERNE
HH+_—{EAAEE)A 133,159,000 (=
T ——4 :72,493,0007T) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREERERN  GIRBEE)

5. i BEREER AABEGE)

25.Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

() EAR
AREHREHEDERTHRRN - I
RESEHF LB QAR - K%
BRI E M TR - MR A
= ERE B -

(c) Interest rate risk
It is the Group’s policy to monitor market conditions
closely and devise suitable strategies against interest
rate risk. The Group regularly reviews its strategy
on interest rate risk management in the light of the
prevailing market condition.

(i) FIEmRBHE
TRFNAEERARABAREERH
AREERBENMERMEE

(i) Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate profile
of the Group’s and the Company’s interest bearing
assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date.

RoadShow Holdings Limited H Annual Report 2012

2012 2011
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate p.a. rate p.a.
ERFEAE BERFER=E
% $'000 % $'000
ERald T Bkt T
The Group rEE
Fixed rate assets: EIZEFIFEEE -
Other non-current HihIEm B
financial assets SREE
— available-for-sale — AHEE
debt securities % & 5 3.9 81,296 4.0 80,872
Bank deposits (including  $R{TER(BHET
pledged deposits) EEER) 1.9 367,631 2.6 362,598
448,927 443,470
Variable rate assets: FEFELE -
Cash at bank RITRE 0.2 31,148 0.2 26,593
The Company AAF
Fixed rate assets: EIEFIEEE -
Bank deposits (including #R{TER(EBEE
pledged deposits) EHFR) 1.1 218,351 2.1 214,519
Variable rate assets: FEHELE -
Cash at bank RITRE 0.1 3,349 0.1 784




25. B BEMREERAABEE)

25.Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(c) REEEE (&)
(ii) BB E 5 H

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2012, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points in
interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have increased/decreased the Group’s profit
after tax and decreased/increased the Group's
accumulated losses by approximately $281,000
(2011: decreased/increased the Group's loss after
tax and accumulated losses by approximately
$233,000). Other components of consolidated
equity would have decreased/increased by
approximately $1,216,000 (2011: $1,906,000)
in response to the general increase/decrease in
interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit/loss
after tax (and accumulated losses) and other
components of consolidated equity that would
arise assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the balance sheet date and had been
applied to re-measure those financial instruments
held by the Group which expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk at the balance sheet date.
In respect of the exposure to cash flow interest
rate risk arising from floating rate non-derivative
instruments held by the Group at the balance sheet
date, the impact on the Group's profit/loss after tax
(and accumulated losses) and other components of
consolidated equity is estimated as an annualised
impact on interest income of such a change in
interest rates. The analysis is performed on the
same basis as for 2011.

RZZE—=—F+=-A=+—8 - {45t
MEEREMN, D100 EEE - &
B AHEMEERFTIE  AEH
MBRHRERFGEN, KD AR
AEBMEFEEBRD EMNL
281,000 (=T ——F : KEFEH
BB 1R R BT EER D BN
233,00070) - MEEE LA, TH
B eEBRE R E A 4R 1D R
b/ EAN#1,216,000 (=8 ——
% :1,906,0007T) °

Pl SRR D AT BN A KRS E
HREHACRIEENAERNEEM
BEBRITA(SAEEREERRY
DABEMNRRER)  AAK BN
BEaMN/EBR(kZFAEBR REa
FE 2 O Lt 4B B BB 4 S 1 3R RO B s
B URBEARENEEARFEF
BANXETESMIAMEENRS
MENXER - HAKERMIEKRT
SER(RRAER) REARRNE
AR NN E - AR XEBEH R
BIRAMERCFEEL G - O
ERE-_T——FHANMAER -

5]

(27 ¥ B Y S U



RoadShow Holdings Limited E Annual Report 2012

Il NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREERERN  GIRBEE)

25.Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(d) Currency risk
The following table details the Group’s and the
Company’s exposure at the balance sheet date to
currency risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.

5. i BEREER AABEGE)

(d) EEER

TR#TIAEBRARD A REERIAA A
PR AN E R B A ER
& R E B AR RO KBRS -

Exposure to foreign currencies S JE B
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BB E
2012 2011
usD RMB usD RMB
EY AR¥% EY AR
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
The Group rEH
Other non-current HAih R B
financial assets TREE 81,296 — 80,872 —
Pledged bank deposits SEMRTER 59,000 — 40,000 —
Bank deposits and cash BTEZRERES 149,807 13,565 160,974 =
290,103 13,565 281,846 —
The Company ¥ AT —
Pledged bank deposits BEMBITER 59,000 — 40,000 —
Bank deposits and cash BITERERES 134,570 13,565 150,216 —
193,570 13,565 190,216 —

In addition, the Group is exposed to currency risk arising
from inter-company receivables and payables denominated
in Renminbi which is not the functional currency of
either the lender or the borrower. The net inter-company
receivables amounted to RMB123,050,000 as at 31
December 2012 (2011: RMB123,651,000).

The following table indicates how an appreciation in
Renminbi against Hong Kong dollar at the balance sheet
date would have affected the Group's results for the year
and other components of equity.

AN REEBEmHIUAARE(GEE R A
BRF e ) FIERA A 7 FH EUER
FEENERFIFAEENEERR - R
T——F+-_A=+—H8 AaBEEWK
PIEEE A AR 123,050,000 (=&
—— & AR¥123,651,0007T) °

TRERREEAARBLBEROTTE
HAKENAFEREREMESAK

MR E -



25.Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

5. EEBREER QD

REEM®E)

(d) E¥ =B (451)

2012 2011
Increase in
profit for Decrease in
Increase  the year and Effect on Increase loss for Effect on
in foreign  decrease in other in foreign  the year and other
exchange accumulated components exchange accumulated components
rate losses of equity rate losses of equity
rEE KEE
EREM HEM BER HHfth
Ex RE& ERAK E% ZitER BRA R
38 1 BERY BHHNEE 38 Ao BHMEE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i T Tr Tr
The Group rEH
Renminbi ARH 3% 5,006 - 3% 4,585 -
A weakening in Renminbi against Hong Kong dollar by the MARELEENEXTRNEERUER
same percentage at the balance sheet date would have had BALTE  BIEAAEENRFEE

an equal but opposite effect on the Group’s results for the
year.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rate had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to currency risk at the balance sheet date, including
inter-company payables and receivables within the Group
which are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currencies of the lender or the borrower, and
that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant. In this respect, it is assumed that the linked
rate between the Hong Kong dollar and the United States
dollar would be materially unaffected by any changes in
movement in value of the United States dollar against other
currencies. Results of the analysis as presented in the above
table represent an aggregation of the effects on each of the
Group entities’ results after tax and equity measured in their
respective functional currencies, translated into Hong Kong
dollar at the exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet date
for presentation purposes. The analysis has been performed
on the same basis as for 2011.

AT RRAZEERNTE -

BREREIMDIBIEXZELERAEE
BE . WHREHNGFEASERFEEN
ZESRMIA MZEIAESAEER
HEARHINERR  BREEEAAQF
MINERFRERANEEBEUINGE
B3 (B B FE 1S BR X & JE W BR 3R R B R
TEMEEMEH(LERME)ARFT
Bopitms AEBEBRIEZETLEM
E%EEWEH&@%T HATHEE
THBBEXELEEATE - LRI
ﬁm%ﬁﬁ$ﬁl%§%w¢muﬁ
NEEEFENRTEEEREZNR
AR E IE&%%EMLHE <
ﬁ%n%ﬁzw B pTEEHE_T
——FFAMAER °
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25.Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(e)

Renminbi is not a fully convertible currency. All foreign
exchange transactions involving Renminbi must take
place either through the People’s Bank of China or
other institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign
currencies.

Fair values
(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value

HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, requires
disclosures relating to fair value measurements of
financial instruments across three levels of a “fair
value hierarchy”. The fair value of each financial
instrument is categorised in its entirety based on
the lowest level of input that is significant to that
fair value measurement. The levels are defined as
follows:

e Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured
using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical financial instruments

e Level 2: fair values measured using quoted
prices in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques
in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data

e |evel 3 (lowest level): fair values measured
using valuation techniques in which any
significant input is not based on observable
market data

At 31 December 2012, the only financial
instruments of the Group carried at fair value were
available-for-sale debt securities of $81,296,000
(2011: $80,872,000) (see note 16). These
instruments fall into Level 1 of the fair value
hierarchy described above.

25. B BEMREERAABEE)

(d) E¥EE(E)
ARBLFAT2EALBNEE -
ASBRARBNINER HE L BBBT
BARBRITHEMEREERII KK
BET -

(e) 2AEE
(i) BAREBEIKHZHBT A
(BRMBREENFIR28 T
A BEIZREBIBIARBEER
REIFEEHERIANAAEE
R RBESRIANAAEERSE
BREHSZAABEFEREAZEN

REZFEBABETIE -  ZFFR
FEMT

= AT 4]

e F1H(ZEBEALR): KAHER2
MTANERMBSRE(CKEH
BIAENAABE

e F2H:RAABEMIANE
B REIRBAEEESRA
ENEERARMBEEREVEREMS
FENGERNFTENAAEE

e FEIR(ZEFH)  RAEME
R AELIFREATERTSH
BROEERMNAENAAEBE

RZZE—=—F+=-A=+—H0 ' &%
BEAAEBEIENE—SHIA
AR EEBKES81,296,0007T
(ZZ——%:80,872,0007T) (R H

H16) ZETEBR LEAREE
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25.Financial risk management and fair values

26.

(continued)

(e) Fair values (continued)
(ii) Fair values of financial instruments carried at

other than fair value

All financial instruments carried at cost or
amortised cost are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2012 and 2011 except that amounts
due from/to ultimate holding company, fellow
subsidiaries and subsidiaries of the Group and the
Company are unsecured, interest-free and have no
fixed repayment terms. Given these terms it is not
meaningful to disclose their fair values.

(f) Estimation of fair values
Fair values of listed available-for-sale debt securities are
based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet
date without any deduction for transaction costs.

Disposal of subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group

25. B BEMREERAABEE)

(e) 2 REEE)

(i) WHZEAALBEIEYZHT ALY L
REE
FTARKASEHEK ARSI
BRAEN T ——FR=_FT——F
T+ A=+—HHAABEREZTK
MEEIIER  HEK BAAEER
RRRMREZER AR BEKBA
AILMBRARFEAEER 28K
METERM ENULEHRK BE
HAABEEETK -

(f) 2ABENMGE

IHAHEEBEBESNAABEIR
BN EE BB ™S RE (L RIRR
GRA)ETE °

26. HEKM B QT
REBz-—T——GF+-_A=+—HLE

disposed of all its interests in Expert Plus Holdings Limited,
Shanghai Yingte Consulting Company Limited and Shanghai
Yafei Advertising Company Limited at a consideration of

US$1, equivalent to $8.

Assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries on the date of

disposal are as follows:

&+ AEBE L EERExpert Plus Holdings
Limited - L8EHEAER QM EEER
BEBRAGINMAREZ
BERBESTT

RERIET

REERHNMBAREERBENT

$'000
7
Fixed assets EEEE 221
Other receivables and deposits HttEWERRRIZE 341
Bank deposits and cash RITFARRE 2,337
Other payables and accruals Hit IR RETER (565)
Net assets disposed of HEEEFRE 2,334
Non-controlling interests IR E & (1,115)
1,219

Reclassification of exchange reserve upon HEWB AR FEH 2 EN
disposal of subsidiaries PE A (751)
Loss on disposal HERE (468)
Cash consideration received EWEEREERE =
Less: cash of the subsidiaries disposed of W HEHBARNRSE (2,337)

Net cash outflow in respect of the disposal of HEMBARNES

subsidiaries o EE (2,337)

# E M4 7102
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27.Commitments 27. &I

(a) Capital commitments
At 31 December 2012, the Group had the following
capital commitments in relation to the purchase of fixed
assets not provided for in the financial statements:

(a) EAREE

R_E——F+-_A=+—H ' K&£HE
WARMERRAELBRENEERE
BEEEMNEARAENT

2012 2011

$000 $'000

Fr Fr

Contracted for EEITEHNE — =
Authorised but not contracted for A BMRBFITEHNE 111,006 111,006
111,006 111,006

(b) Operating lease commitments
At 31 December 2012, the Group’s total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of property and equipment
are payable as follows:

(b) EEHERRE

RZE-—Z_F+HA=+—H x&H
BREEEDELRREO N AZHEER
ERMNMARRREHSEBRWT :

2012 2011
$'000 $°000

T T

Within 1 year —FR 9,852 9,618
After 1 year but within 5 years —FHRERFR 6,382 17,880
16,234 27,498

The Group leases property and equipment under
operating leases. The leases run for an initial period of
1 to 5 years, with an option to renew the leases when
all terms are renegotiated. The leases do not include
any contingent rentals.

AEERBELEHEERMENRE
MENTRE—ZRF UAIREHE
BEBEIERED HEIBFEEML
REE -



27.Commitments (continued)

(c) Other commitments
Certain exclusive licences to (i) conduct media sales
management services for BUS-TV business, (ii) to
conduct media sales agency and management business
on selected bus shelters, (iii) to solicit advertising
business in respect of the interior and exterior panels of
buses operated by The Kowloon Motor Bus Company
(1933) Limited (“KMB"”) and Long Win Bus Company
Limited (“Long Win"), and (iv) to solicit advertising
business on billboards owned by the government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region have been
granted to the Group, and the respective licences will
expire in periods ranging from 2014 to 2017. Under
such licences, the Group has committed to pay licence
fees or royalty fees at a pre-determined percentage
of the net advertising rental received, subject to a
guaranteed minimum amount. The future minimum
guaranteed licence fees and royalty fees are payable as

27. ENE(4E)

(c) HibA&iE
$%E%ﬁ%$0ﬁ5i ﬁ%ﬁkf
HEEETERE  ()AFEELRE

FrRERE %Eﬁﬁ&aﬁﬁﬁ (iii) B

NEBL£(— S)BER2ATNAE])
E@Eiﬁ@ A([EEEDMEEN
Ei%ﬁfﬁ%&$%%%ﬁ fir 17

BEEEH - R(v)SLERFRITRE BN
BRENESRETESEHNEFE
ENEHMHERNF_ZE-—HFE_T
—tFHEAY - REZFHFE K
SECAXRRAEERESHSFENE
AEFTAEALBNBHFEXRENE
AXREFREEEMR - RRKERE
BrEREMNEMENT

follows:

2012 2011
$°000 $'000
5 Fr
Within 1 year —FR 150,097 98,276
After 1 year but within 5 years —FREZFR 307,456 23,000
457,553 121,276

28.Employee retirement benefits 28. B &R K& F

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of
the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of $25,000 (Period before 31 May 2012:
monthly relevant income of $20,000). Contributions to the
MPF Scheme vest immediately.

REBBREESCEFIEATEEHEEL A
RREB(EBENMEZNEERILES
H“%A%ﬂﬁﬁ%A%%D RIE SR
EIRERHEERRINGTE  ABUETHEE
B RERESTE  RETHEEREHARE
ﬁmﬁwﬁﬂﬁﬁWAﬁ%mﬁﬁ & A
EAWRAR ERA25000(ZE——4FH
A=+—Ha#MHE : Hﬁﬁau&)\zo,ooo
J0) ° AT EIER T AR o

—_
N
w
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28.Employee retirement benefits (continued) 28. EERKEH (&)
As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, the Group WREBEHREER  RNEEL28EHHEKRQ AN
participates in employee pension schemes organised by the BRARNMARFERNESRAKESE -
local governments under which the Company’s subsidiaries REBREIFBOT :
are governed. Details of the schemes of the Group are as
follows:

Contribution rate (Note)

Administrator Beneficiary R ()
BEA FrmA 2012 2011
Beijing Social Security Fund Management Centre Employees 20% 20%
trEmutERERESERFRL ==
Note: Bt -
Under the scheme, the Group and its employees are each required BiEZE AEFHEEREESAEELHEERTEL
to make a contribution to the scheme at 20% and 8% of a pre- EERE20% & 8% Kyt -

determined amount.

29. Material related party transactions 2. 5EHEALTHNEARRS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed BRAMERREMEIBHARENR S REER
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group has the G REBREREATEREALTHR
following related party transactions during the year: 2
Income/(expenses)
WA (BX)
2012 2011
Note $'000 $'000
ik Fr FE
Licence and service fees for conducting B+ ERE
BUS-TV business BHERERKE (i) (19,720) (21,470)
Licence and royalty fees paid for the MEETEERHEES
right to sell advertising space on & & REFI AT 19
transit vehicle shelters B RENE (ii) (18,634) (14,305)
Licence fee for the right to solicit REEERBE[ABES
advertising business at advertising UETESEBNEF
space on transit vehicle interiors R = (i) (12,000) (11,000)
Licence fee for the right to solicit REEERHEGIHPES
advertising business at advertising NETESEBWER
space on transit vehicle exteriors BASEF & (iv) (60,000) (57,500)
Rental expenses HEEHR (v) (8,242) (7,760)
Management fee expenses EEEMX (vi) (20,991) (16,975)
Guaranteed advertising income RFBEE WA (vii) — 557
Service fee paid for logistic function REBREZTREE (viii) (490) (490)
Key management personnel FEEBAE
remuneration < (ix) (10,609) (9,503)




29.Material related party transactions (continued)

Notes:

()

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

Licence and service fees were paid to a subsidiary of the Company’s
ultimate holding company, Transport International Holdings Limited
("TIH") for conducting BUS-TV advertising business on buses
operated by KMB and fitted with the BUS-TV broadcasting system.
The amount payable by the Group at the year end amounted to
$5,960,000 (2011: $5,960,000).

Licence and royalty fees were paid for selling advertising spaces on
certain transit vehicle shelters owned by a subsidiary of TIH. The
amount payable to a subsidiary of TIH at the year end amounted to
$1,326,000 (2011: amount receivable of $287,000).

Licence fee was paid to a subsidiary of TIH for soliciting advertising
business in respect of the interior panels and other interior spaces
inside the compartments of buses operated by KMB. The amount
receivable by the Group for advance payments made at the year
end amounted to $23,000 (2011: amount payable of $32,000).

Licence fee was paid to subsidiaries of TIH for marketing, displaying
and maintaining advertisements at the exterior panels of the bodies
of buses operated by KMB. The amount receivable by the Group for
advance payments made at the year end amounted to $10,809,000
(2011: $1,896,000).

Rental expenses were paid to a subsidiary of TIH for leasing
properties, audio and visual equipment, computer equipment and
software system, and furniture and fixtures. The amount payable by
the Group at the year end amounted to $Nil (2011: $Nil).

Management fee was paid to JCDecaux Cityscape Limited
("JCDecaux Cityscape”), a fellow subsidiary of a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company, for the provision of
media sales agency services in relation to bus shelters. The amount
payable to JCDecaux Cityscape at the year end amounted to
$3,612,000 (2011: $4,507,000).

(vii) The Group has entered into a contract with JCDecaux Cityscape

for media sales agency services provided to the Group in relation
to the bus shelters under the media sales business. The Group
shall be entitled to a guaranteed income calculated based on the
rates per panel and the number of bus shelter panels. JCDecaux
Cityscape shall pay any shortfall if the actual income derived from
the bus shelters is less than the guaranteed amount, and the
shortfall amounted to $Nil (2011: $557,000) for the year ended 31
December 2012. The amount due from JCDecaux Cityscape at the
year end amounted to $Nil (2011: $Nil).

(viii) The Group paid a service fee to JCDecaux Cityscape for the logistic

function provided to the Group in relation to the bus shelters under
the media sales business. The amount due to JCDecaux Cityscape
at the year end amounted to $41,000 (2011: $41,000).

29. EEATHNERRS (8)

s

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

B hRBERERNEMEENE L ENEL
EREEASRETELERESEB AN TA
RAMREERA R SBEERZERERAE([#
BHOMBRANER - RER » AEB BN
X IH 735,960,000 7C(=F — — £ : 5,960,000
JT) °

FHREFNBRIEREERABNBARMEEN
HATREEWHEEZEEMEAINNER - RF
R BN TEHBIWBRRAKRIER,326,0007T
(ZZ——F : EREAKNB2RF287,0007T) °

BHERERRNEMEENETHNERANLE
SRR EMERASNEETESESINTH
BRBARNER - NEXR  AEBEHREIEHEN
B ERIEREWRIE S 23,000 T(ZE——4% : fE
f3RIE 32,000 7T) °

BFHESERTEHEE BIREFEERAE
FTEENBEIMEFIINSEESMNAS NS BHE
REINEBR - REXR  AEBEHREELNBERRK
T8 /) fE LR IA 4 10,809,000 L (=T — — 4 ¢
1,896,000 7T) ©

AEBARENE  YERE  EMBRERRY
o RAREESARANEL AL HEE
BF - REX  AEEEFHREATL(ZF
——% E) -

AEFRAREEEE T FESTHEHERER
BRESESARAR(ESREE ) HER
& ZRRRADNRMBARFFEBEBRRNREF
MEBAR - REXR BN TFTESEENRES
3,612,000(=ZF——% : 4,507,0007T) °

(vii) AEERESREANASEREEAEBCE L RES

BEFHEXHRA THRBHEAEREEES
BEFVAR - AEBARRIRGRERA - 28
DRERESROBEEB L REZESRNEA
METE - WEREELHEEZNERKA DR
HFeH ZHEAARSREREH HE_T—=
F+_ A=t BILFENZBERETL(_F
——% :557,00070) - RER " BRESEY
MRBERET(ZE——F T

(i AEERESERARNAEEREEEE LEES

HEEEEKBE THERIRENESES X
HR%EE RER ENTFTESBREMNRER
41,000 L(=ZZF——4F : 41,0007T) °

5]
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREERERN  GIRBEE)

29. Material related party transactions (continued)

Notes (continued):

(ix) Remuneration for key management personnel, including
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note
8 and certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in
note 9, is as follows:

29. FREATHNERRZ (&)
GEAC IR
(ix) IE%EAE\E’UM@(@%W%S?H&?ESEH%

AREENFELMTIMBESIMNTE T&
m%i BEMFRE)NOT :

2012 2011

$'000 $'000

Fr Fr

Short-term employee benefits I E SR T 10,540 9,443
Post-employment benefits BER R 12 7 69 60
10,609 9,503

(x) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to connected
transactions

The related party transactions in respect of licence fees and
rental expenses payable to subsidiaries of TIH and management
fee payable to and guaranteed advertising income receivable
from JCDecaux Cityscape above constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures required by
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are provided in on pages 24
to 29 of this Annual Report.

The related party transaction in respect of service fee paid
for logistic function payable to JCDecaux Cityscape above
constitutes continuing connected transaction as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However, they are exempt
from the disclosure requirements in chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

30.Immediate and ultimate controlling party

At 31 December 2012, the Directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be
KMB Resources Limited and TIH respectively. KMB Resources
Limited is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands while TIH
is incorporated in Bermuda and listed in Hong Kong. TIH
produces financial statements available for public use.

(x) FHEBEXZHNLEMARBERE

rEBEENGFHBNBARANSHEREES
B UARENTFEeSESNERERERESE
BHREESWRANEHEEALRZBERBER
SUFHBRER S (EERLETRAUE 14AF) -
FTRAFEVAERENBEBRRRARFERE 24
ZTHE29H o

L BEARECHRBES T ERBENRE SN
TFHREALRGBREEEERZ(EER T
RAIE14AE) - A HEERRET LKA
FUUAZENEERT -

30, EERRRERAT

R-ZE——_+ZA=+—8" %%%%
REBWNEESRARRKEKERAT DA
/A KMB Resources Limited & # # o KMB
Resources Limited X % B & X & & o fit 5k
Vo mEBBARBEREFMKIEREE L
e HBREVERRABRABRALHE -



31.Accounting estimates and judgements

The key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Depreciation

Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The Company reviews
annually the useful life of an asset. The depreciation
expense for future periods is adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimates.

Impairment of fixed assets

Fixed assets are assessed at each balance sheet date
to identify indications that they may be impaired. Such
indications include physical damage of a fixed asset and
a decrease in the revenue derived from a fixed asset. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the fixed asset is estimated. The recoverable amount
of a fixed asset is based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations use cash flow projections based on
reasonable assumptions that represent management’s
best estimate of the range of economic benefits from
the asset over its remaining useful life.

Impairment of unlisted available-for-sale equity
interest

In considering the impairment losses that might
be required for the Group’s unlisted available-for-
sale equity interest carried at cost, the investment is
reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined as the difference between the carrying
amount of the unlisted available-for-sale equity interest
and the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset
where the effect of discounting is material. Estimates
of future cash flows from such equity interest require
significant judgement. Impairment losses for equity
interest carried at cost are not reversed.

31. G 5HE E R A B
AN BT[N EERR

(a) 18

BEEENRBEMGFAERFHNE
REAENE - ARAIBFERTEEN
AfERAFER - WMBEBMFELEERE
8 ARRBROTERSELHE -

(b) BIEEERE

(c)

AEBEREBEEERFGEAETEERSD
RETR ZEDREREAETEENE
HERMETEEMELENRDMD
FREEMLEFRETR  NEE /G
AEEEEMNAKREHE BEEEN
AR EgBERERERNE - ZFHE
EAREREBHREEMNKENGSEL &
ERAMENEERR  LRBTAE
RERETRERERA -

FETAHHERENRE

EERASBIRAATIRNIE Ea ¢
HEREEGRERER  AKERE
HEEAENZRE  UEEREFHE
EREBNRERRE o WiFE I AR
i MEMREBRSRIE LA H
i B AR B A AT R R IR & R E (i
NREEEX ARBEUEREENR
THMHEEREFR)NERET - EEKR
BOARRSRERBAASKHAE - %
BN 0k e A=Y S R CI

—_
N
~N

B 210C

£
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BRI

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREERERN  GIRBEE)

31. gt R A ()

31.Accounting estimates and judgements
(continued)

(d) ERERRBEARRREXAERKE

(d) Impairment of accounts receivable and loans to

and amounts due from investee

The Group maintains impairment losses for bad and
doubtful debts for estimated losses resulting from the
inability of the debtors and investee to make required
payments. The Group bases the estimates of future
cash flows on the ageing of the accounts receivable
balance and debtors’ and investee’s credit-worthiness.
A considerable level of judgement is exercised by
management when assessing the credit-worthiness
of each individual customer and the investee and the
collectibility of each accounts receivable balance. Any

BRREDTRE

AEBEBERARPREDBENER
PR XA M S B A BRERSR
BEROHRERRE AKBEREERUEER
RBERE KRR REFRARBKRE R RNIE
BERENKGEAARKRERE - EERER
AEEBULEFP RERERRMNEERE
71 B & e YRR R 4 ek mT R [ 1 B R A
—EREMHE RERREBRNE
AIERE A EFEAERBARKRFEENE

==
5 o
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increase or decrease in impairment losses for bad and
doubtful debts would affect the Group’s results in
future years.

RN.FAARGHEHRER

4

After the balance sheet date, the Directors proposed a final EENAERRERRERARE - E—F
HERME 1) EE -

32.Non-adjusting post balance sheet events

dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 11(a).



33.Possible impact of amendments, new

standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2012

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and five new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2012 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which may
be relevant to the Group.

3B.CEMIEREBE-ZS—=-F+=A
St+—BLEFEERERNERE
A HERARREURERNEE

BEAMBHRTNEAY RGOS
ERfETREE-_T——F+-_A=1—
AIEFERARERNERT RABEHEL - M
AW RR A EIRAZERT LFHER - B
ATgRBAKERENER -

Effective for accounting periods

beginning on or after

RIS EBRz&
AN ETHBEX

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements —
Presentation of items of other comprehensive income 1 July 2012
(BRETTERNE\RNEE  [HBBEFXNZ25 — B2 EKzEEHEZ5] ] —Z--%tHA—-H

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

(BRMBHEERE 0  [FLUBHEX

HKFRS 12, Disclosures of interests in other entities

(BRMBREERNE 125, AL EREZHHE ]

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

(BRBBHEERNE 3R  [AALEETE

HKAS 27, Separate financial statements (2011)
(BBETERNE27%  [BVHBHE/(—F——F)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle
ZEENFER_E——FHEB(E B BB EER DN FEAE

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

(BEBUBHMELERIFE IR [£H LA/

1 January 2013
—Z—=%—-8—H

1 January 2013
—E-=f-8—-H

1 January 2013
—E2-=%—-A—-H

1 January 2013
—E-=f-8—-H

1 January 2013
—E-=%—-A-—H

1 January 2015
—E-Af—-fA—H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it
has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have
a significant impact on the Group's results of operations
and financial position.

AEBEFEZSETRAENRERER
HENTE  BARL AEERSRMNZ
FEIRFENHARENKEEXRE R
RABREAZENAREIERK

% gl HHeioc

5]
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B FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EFEUBME
For the years ended 31 December
BE+-A=1t—HLEE
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T
RESULTS 4
Turnover e 421,154 371,491 325,231 196,361 148,412
Other revenue and other  HA AR EM
net income W= FEE 22,019 25,837 31,213 26,778 35,560
Total revenue ONE | 443,173 397,328 356,444 223,139 183,972
Profit from operations KEBF 96,490 79,193 61,114 36,842 42,943
Finance costs B %2 M — — — — (300)
Impairment loss on other ~ E At 3E57E)
non-current financial TRMEE
assets HEER — (109,606) (110,000) (9,801) —
Loss on disposal of HEKBEAR
subsidiaries B8 — (468) = = =
Gain on deemed disposal ~ BIEHEREE
of partial interest in DNEHHERE
associate HY Uk 2= — — — 177 —
Share of (loss)/profit of FE{E B & A F)
associate (B#E) BF — — — (4,544) 14,141
Profit/(loss) before BRBARF,
taxation (&#8) 96,490 (30,881) (48,886) 22,674 56,784
Income tax Fris® (16,991) (12,863) (8,269) (4,454) (7,062)
Profit/(loss) for the year rEERF(FHB) 79,499 (43,744) (57,155) 18,220 49,722
Attributable to: T
Equity shareholders of the ~ Z A F]
Company [ 74,817 (48,637) (61,641) 14,016 42,615
Non-controlling interests ~ FEiZfREZ 4,682 4,893 4,486 4,204 7,107
Profit/(loss) for the year KEEREF(BE) 79,499 (43,744) (57,155) 18,220 49,722




At 31 December

R+=A=+-H
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T BT T BT T BT T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERERE
Fixed assets BE&E 49,122 64,672 8,406 13,407 11,855
Media assets HEEE — — — 372 778
Non-current prepayments  JE7 B T8 518 3,741 1,667 44,268 19,160 28,741
Interest in associate AN —_ — — = 256,926
Other non-current financial Ef I RE &R
assets BE 81,296 80,872 219,140 231,664 —
Deferred tax assets BEFIBEEE 2,618 3,060 4,067 3,802 6,227
Net current assets mEBEEFE 519,494 491,540 459,873 541,335 552,215
Total assets less current EEAERRE
liabilities =L 656,271 641,811 735,754 809,740 856,742
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHEERE (157) (81) (86) (573) (2,295)
Net Assets BEEFE 656,114 641,730 735,668 809,167 854,447
Capital and reserves BARFEES
Share capital BRA& 99,737 99,737 99,737 99,737 99,737
Reserves fHES 546,441 530,739 628,455 703,240 742,324
Total equity attributable to 72 8] IR
equity shareholders of bR
the Company s 646,178 630,476 728,192 802,977 842,061
Non-controlling interests FERER 9,936 11,254 7,476 6,190 12,386
Total Equity EnAEH 656,114 641,730 735,668 809,167 854,447

5 E B£47102
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(27 & B BH e B



RoadShow Holdings Limited E Annual Report 2012

B CORPORATE DIRECTORY

NAREH

Board of Directors E5¢

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak - Chairman
PRAZE T AT - £F
GBS, JP, DBA (Hon), DSocSc (Hon), BA, DipMS, CCMI, FCILT, FHKIoD

Ms Winnie NG - Deputy Chairman
hBERRL - FFE
BA, MBA (Chicago), MPA (Harvard), FCIM,CMILT, MHKloD

Mr YUNG Wing Chung - Deputy Chairman
BXBEE - BIFE

Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI*

REI ATt
BBS, MBE, JP, DProf, BA(Econ), FHKIoD, FHKMA, FBCS, CITP, FHKIE, HonFACE, PDipCD

Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung*
FREB/T AT~

GBS, OBE, JP, LLD, DSOS, BA, FCPA (Practising), Hon HKAT, FCA, FCPA (Aust), FCIS, FHKIoD
Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung*
RIZREBAF L

BBS, JP, FHKloD

Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung*
HEPE ATt

SBS, OBE, JP

Mr Alex MO Tik Sang - Managing Director
EHESYE - EFLLE
FHKIoD

Mr MAK Chun Keung
BEiRE KL

Mr John Anthony MILLER
HEBLLE

SBS, OBE, MPA (Harvard), BA (London), FHKIoD
Mr Edmond HO Tat Man

fAEN LA

MA (Cantab), MBA, FCILT, MHKIoD

*  Independent Non-Executive Director
BUIHTEF

Company Secretary 2 F#HE
Ms Jo MAN Miu Sheung
NI

ACA, CPA

Registrars & EzE &

Hong Kong & &

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712 — 1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

BEBEPRBLFBZLRERAA
BEREERRERI1SIHRATALI17TE1712-1716 F
Bermuda BHZ

Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited

26 Burnaby Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda

Closure of Register of Members

EENERDEFBRTTFE

For the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’
entitlement to attend and vote at the Annual
General Meeting:

8 May 2013 to 13 May 2013 (both dates inclusive)

AEERRHUERREFASYNE LRENER M
g

2= ANBEZ—=FHRHAT=H
(BREEREMA)

For the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’
entitlement to the proposed final dividend:
20 May 2013 to 21 May 2013 (both dates
inclusive)

AREERREREERURENEIAMEE :
T =FRAA-_tHE_ZE—=FRAAF_+—H
(REEREMWAE)

Annual General Meeting RREBF RS

Date & Time : 13 May 2013, 11:40 a.m.
Venue : Novotel Century Hong Kong,
Plaza 4, Lower Lobby,
238 Jaffe Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong

C CE-=f0A+=H
FF+—FmO+5

C BBEFHEB 2385
42 B 78 JE K 2 (K B
AREERE

B K B ]
3

Dividends & &

Interim - Nil
Final (Proposed) : HK7.50 cents per share
A A i

REA (%) C BB 7,501

Registered Office I HERE
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda
Principal Office AWEE

9 Po Lun Street, Lai Chi Kok,
Kowloon, Hong Kong
BEANEARABTHENKR

. (852) 2746 5200
. (852) 2744 7854
http://www.roadshow.com.hk/

Auditors 2k

KPMG
8/F, Prince’s Building, 10 Chater Road,
Central, Hong Kong

25 E A E B
BEEPREITEI0RATAREE

Telephone & &%
Facsimile 2 H
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